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PILOT UNIVERSAL LUNCH PROGRAM

MONDAY, MARCH 20, 1978

‘House oF REPRESENTATIVES,
CoymrrTEE ox Epvcarron axp LaBox,
Washington, D.C.

The committez met at 10 a.m., pursuant to call, in room 2173,
Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Carl D. Perkins (chairman of
the committee) presiding. .

Present: Representatives Perkins, Green, Quie, Ruth, and Veysey.

Staff mebers present: :Marian Wyman, special assistant to the
chairman, and Charles W. Radcliffe, minority counsel for education.

(Text of A.R. 13452 follows:)

[H.R. 13152, 92d Cong., second sess.}

A BILL T provide for a program of demonstration projects to test and evaluate the effecti- ness, nutrle
tional benefits, administrative procedures, and potential costs of a universal food service and nutrition
education program for children )

Be it enacted by the Senate and.House of Representatives-of the Uniled States of
America in Congress assembled, That the Elementary and Secondary Education
Act of 1965, is amended by adding at the end thereof the fcllowing new section:

“DEMONSTRATION PROJECTS IN UNIVERSAL POOD‘SERVICB AND NUTRITIONAL
EDUCATION PROGRAMS

“Stc. 810. (a) The Secretary of Agriculture (hereinafter in this section referred
to as the Secretary), in cooperation with the Secretary of Health, Education, and
Welfare, is directed to formulate and adininister cooperatively with State edu-
cational ageneies a programn of frauts for demonstration projeets designed to
provide universal food service and nutrition-education programs,

“(b) Demonstration projects supported under this section shall—

“(1) be designed to provide each child in attendance an equal opportunity
to participate on the same basis as all other children with no discrimination
as to time and place of serving or types oramounts of food offered;

“(2) be conducted on a nonprofit basis under the supervision of the
governing authorities of participating #ehools; and

“(3) provide at least one meal a day without charge to all children in
attendance; sueh meals shall consist of a combination of foods meeting a
minimum of one-third of the child’s minimal daily nutritional requirements.
Additional meals andfor supplemental food services may be offered to all
children in attendance ab varying times of the day based-on nutritional needs.

Projects supported under this section shall be distributed to the greatest extent
ossible thoughout the Nation and earried out in both urban and rural areas.
n supporting projects under this section, the Secretary shall seék to achieve a

distribution which allows for support of projects (1) in publie and private nonprofit
elementary and seeondary schools, including kindergarfens or child care centers
where they are operated as part of the sehool system; (2) in low, middle, and hign
income areas; (3) which allow for evaluating varying methods of food preparation
delivery service, including eentral and satellite kitchens or commercinlly supplie(i
food service; (4) in districtwide programs as well as in pilot operations and
individual sehool attendance units; and (5) in school districts with varying ethnic
and racial enrollments,

1)

.
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ter The Seeretary, in cooperation with the Commissioner, ~hall formulate the
basie elaments of a nutiition edueation progriun for children to be extended
through State educational ngencies to schools seleeted for participation a»
Aemonstraiion projects.

“ody The Seeretary shall utilize the serviees of the Natioual Advigory Couneil
extablished wnder seeticn 14 of Publie Law 91-48, for the purpose of evaduating
the resalts of the prograin of the program auth wized by this section. The Secie-
tmy is authorized to appoint such speeial or technical advisors committees as he
may deem neeessary to assist in this evaluation. He shail seeure the adviee,
assistance and recommendations of such other persous and mganizitions as i
in hix diceretion deems neeessary in making such evaiuations.

ey Tor e purpose of making grants under this seetion, there are hereby
authorized to be appropriated $3,000.000 for each of the fiseal yoars ending June
50, 1973, and June 30, 1974, Sun appropriated may be nsed to finauee 1 1) dirset
IFederal expenses: (2) State admin  wration expenses’; and (3) the cost of preparing
mid serving meals in pilot schools including the costs of equipment and services
related thereto but not the cost of land or construction of buildings,"”

Chzirman Perrins. Let me first weleome all of you here.

We have a quorum present; Mrs. Green is here.

We are opening hearings this morning on a bill o provide for a
program of demonstration projects to test and cevaluate the effective-
ness, natritional benefits, administeative procedures. and potential
costs -of universal food service and nuirition education prograin for
children.

I am delighted to weleome vou here, Miss Martin, and you may
procesd at this time.

STATEMENTS OF JOSEPHINE MARTIN, OF ATLANTA, GA., LEGISLA-
TIVE CHATRMAN, AND LAWRENCE BARTLETT, OF NASHVILLE.
TENN., CHAIRMAN, STATE DIRECTORS OF SCEOOL F00D SERVICE.
AIERICAN SCHOOL FOOD SERVICE ASSOCIATION

Miss Mawrin., Mr. -Chairman, with your permission, we would
like for Mr. Bartlett to lead off. .

Mr. Bartrerr. Mr. Chairman, my name is Lawrence Bartlet(.
Tam the director of School Food Services for the Tennessee Depart-
ment of Education. My appearance before this committee today,
however, is primarily in- the role of chairman of the State directors
section of the American School Food Service Association. Tn pre-
senting this testimony I' am speaking for our 49.600 mienibers and
the 25 million children in school who are participating in the national
sclool luneh program.

I am speaking also for our exccutive director, Dr. John N. Perrvinan.
who has testified before this committce on many previons occasions.

‘This will be the first opportunity that 1 have had to appear before
this particalar committee. but I have testified before other committees.
both in the House and the Senate.

I thank vou for giving me this opportunity {o speak in response to
FLR. 13452, a bill to previde for a program of demonstration projects
to test and evaluate the effectiveness. nuiritional benefits, adminis-
trative procedures. and potential costs of a universal food service and
natrition education program for children.

Afr. Chairman. | need not remind you of the strong, deep-scated.
gra~>roots support that the American School Food Service Associniion
has developed und nurtured for vour universal bill which was intro-
dueed in the first session of the 92d Congress as HLR. 5201. a bill to

PN
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establish a universal food service and nutrition education program for
children. You have our pledge of support for the concepts expressed
in thad bill, ’

It is my privilege to represent De. Perrvman and act as chairman
of thix panel wlich consists of Josephine Martin, State director.
School Food Services, Georgia; Virginta Ball, School Food Services,
St Paull Minng; and our consultant and ASFSA Washington repre-
sentavive, Mr. Sam Vanneman, .

Section -19 of 1L.R. 5291 provides for pilot programs to test and
develop the'most effective techniques and procedures for effectuating
the provisions of the act. and for the purpose of developing appropriate
estimates of participation and costs. .

If that bill should be passed by the Coungress and signed into law
after July 1, 1972, it could be fiscal year 1974, the 1973-74 school
vear. before any pilot programs could be initiated.

Wiih the intensification of the complexities of regulations and the
necessity for adherence to these regulations in present school food
service programs, we can’t afford the luxury of waiting for possibly
2 {0 3 years to begin pilot programs.

OQur association wrges that pilot. programs be initiated by the
beginning of the next school year (o test out, concepts that we believe
are right for all children, but which must be denonstrated to the
complete satisfaction of the Congress that they are right.

May I revert momentarily to my regular role as State director of
School Food Services for Tennessee and relay to this commitice some
of the very significant results of a pilot. program joiutly initiated in
the fall of 1970 by the city schools of Memphis and our State.

This initial study involved six schools in a highly concentrated
low-income area consisting of four clementary and two secondary
schools. The average daily attendance in these six schools for the
1970-71 school vear was 8,529, The average daily meals served in
Mareh 1971 was 8.285. .

Here are the savings that were effectuated in these schools as
reported by the director-of food services in Memphis:

Cost of huneh tickets, eards, or books. .. ..o . $17. 000
Labor cost per plate (savings) of $0.0306_ ... ... Tttt 44, 366
. Total suvings. .. ... e e e e ———— 61, 3G6

Another savings that most. people might not consider significant,
but we did, and that is the matter of break-ins and vandalism.

In the six-school project during 1969-70 school Year, there were
reporied a mininum of 38 break-ins in the schools, in which replace-
ment costs or damages amounted fo $2,876.

During the full year of the pilot program there were only 12 break-
ins with an estimated replacement cost of only $1,038.

The net reports of this were 26 break-ins less, and a total savings
of $1,838.

It is estimated that managers of food services in Memphis schools
that, did not participate in this particular project. spend 2 minimum
of 15 percent of thewr time in handling lunch tickets, lunch cards, or
lunch books. If this time were directed to the more needed activity of
program supervision or management, the total program would have
benefited. The time now spent doing these chores of handling the
lunch tickets, and so forth, s costine approximately $45,000.
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I must now assume iny original role, that of representing our
association. Some of the most serious indictments that we hear against
a universal program is the amount of the cost involved. In my veéry
candid opinion there can be many offseiting savings that ean and will
help to reduce the cost so that the per child expenditure could be
considerably less than it is now eosting the parent, the Federal, State,
and loeal governments.

Tt is because of the mnany and compounding complexities of the pro-
gram that we need a series of pilot prograns nitiated under controlled
conditions to determnine not only t{w costs, but also the savings, that
can be effectuated. ’

The proposals outlined in H.R. 13452 should give us many of the
answers, Therefore, we again pledge the support of our association to
secure passage of this bill as well as for the passage of the universal
bill, and, Mr. Chairman, to assure you that some pilot program situa-
tions can be found, we are volunteering the entire State of ‘T'ennessee
or any part of it for pilot progran testing.

Thank you. :

Chairman Perxins. The opposition to this bill apparently stems
from the proposition that youngsters who are able to pay for their
meals should pay, and we should not provide those youngsters with
free meals. In other words, we have to separate the ones that are able
to pay from all thdse who are not. That is more or less the theory of the
present school lunch program.

Mr. Bartrerr. That is right.

Chairman Perxixs. What is your answer to this opposition?

Mr. Barrrgrr., Mr. Chairman, in my candid opinion, the parents
wlio are now paying-for their children’s lunch daily are, also, in reality,
paying for the free lunch children because tliey are paying both Federal
and State taxes for support of this prograin.

So, in effect, if we feed the same number of children or increase
this-nuriber of children, the people whe are currently paying for the
prograin are in reality already paying for it.

So we can eliminate a lot of the cost by making it without direct
eost to the individual child, and eliminate the problem of trying to
apply an ecounoinic neans test, getting many people perhaps who may
cheat a littie bit on: this, ar -1 in our opinion we would come up with a
total cost per plate of less than ju is now costing for the same nuniber
of children, if it was made free to every child in the school.

Chairman Perxins. Mr. Quic?

Mr. Quie. Do you think we should use that same philoso]‘)hy under
other programs? Since so many people are under AFDC, do you
think every such family in AFDC should be funded the same way?

Mr. BarrLerr. I am not quite as familiar with other programns as L
am with the educational aspects. Primarily in our school programs we
talk of a free public education program, and this is one of the very few
seginents of a public free education program that requires daily con-
tributions by those who participate. We do not ask the child how much

-money lhis family earns when we provide a bus to take him to school or

if he enrolls in an English class, so iy feeling is if we accept the phi-
losophy that we have a free public education, then this is a very valid
part of it, and it should be made available to every clild without
checking to see if he can financially afford it.
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Mr. Quie. How many meals should we provide free to everybody?
We are providing breakfast in some places. Is it sufficient with break-
fast and the noon meal, or should we extend school a little longer so
they can get the evening meal, too?

Nr. Bawruerr. At this point we have not gone into the evening
prograin. We are a strong advoeate of the breakfast program as a
component to the lunch program. Now T don’t have before me the
totnF number of meals that are served. Perhaps our consultant can
give us a figure on that if we need that speeifieally, sir.

In my State we are feeding over 100 million meals per year in the
lunch program.

Mr. Quie. I gather you would like to have free breakfasts and
lunches, at least, for everyone?

Mr. Barrnerr. Right.

Mr. Quik. And you are leaving the door open for the evening mea]
if we want to get to that? .

Mr. BanrreErr. We would not want (o closé it completely tight.

Mr. Quie. You conld put some cots in there and the ehildren would
never have {o go home then.

That is all.

Chairman Perkins. Mrs, Green?

Mrs. Gueex. T did not hear an answer to Congressinan Quic.
Would vou serve everybody a free breakfast?

Mr. Bartiert. In the present coneept the ildren who are
now eligible for a free lunch under proposed r tions next yeéar
would be eligible for a free breakfast also. My thusing is that since
the breakfagt program-is a fairly small program, personally I would
have no objection (o u free breakfast to every child beeause many
children do eome to sehool without breakfast, and we think this would
be a marvelous way of starting the day for the child.

Mrs., Gzeexn. How nueh of the school personnel would be involved
in operating the breakfast and lunch progsams and therefore would
not be able to perform those tasks for which they are professionally
trained, as teac]llers?

Would you hire outsiders to take care of the food programs?

Mr. Barrierr. Under this new eoneept we would want to relieve
‘the teaeher of this responsibility. I think if we make a program avail-
able, including breakfast and lunch to every ehild, then we have
climmated a lot of the so-called redtape procedures involved in trying
to identify children for eligibility under present income level standards.

Mrs. GREEN. You may or may not }lmve reduced the redtape, but
you have increased tremendously the amount of work required if you
provide meals for every child.

What. about health? If a youngster needs glasses or soine other itent,
we provide it on the basis of that need. But under your theory-would
we provide comprehensive free health service, glasses and dental
work for every child in school? ’

Mr. Bartnerr. The present eoncept, the low income child is being
provided for.

Mrs. GrReexn. You are either not hearing the questions or are
evading therh. As I understand the situation, youngsters now reecive
a free lunch on the basis of need, and you reeommend that everyone
be given a free lunch whether he needs it or not. We now give free

86-070—72——2
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glasses on the basis of need. In accord with your philo~ophy. would
we make health services available or make glasses or dental voork
available (0 evervbody regardless of their need, becanse you finve
defined such services as an integral pacisof the eduetation program?

M, Barvrgrr, Mrs. Green, if (hi§ istnecessary (o assure that
child -of getting the best that is available 40 him—and not waste the
taxpayers’ money heranse he is unable o learn—if (hi~ was the only
way that that child could get these benefits, 1 think it should he
provided.

Mes, Greex. But what if the childs purenis can provide ihi<e
things? Do we provide such services anyhow because it i~ part of the
free publie school system?

Mr. Barrrerr., 1 am not sure | could answer that.

Mrs. Grex. But you do reconmmend free lunches even thensh
the parents could supply the lueh for the child? You still reconmzenud
that we assume the full responsibility and supply free hmehes for
evervhody?

My, Barreerr, That is correct.

Mes, Grerx, Why wouldn’t vou provide health serviees which
seems more hasic?

Mr, Bawrngrr. T conld not speak for the association 1 represent,
but for myself I wonld say that this perhaps should be done,

Mrs, Greex, Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

Chairman Perrixs, Mr, Vevsey,

Nir. Vevysey, Mr, Chairmaan, Mr, Bartlet(, T find it bare! Lo resist the
idea that we ought. -to explore an interesting avea such as (his, but |
have information which indicates that there are » mumber of commnni-
ties now presenting free luneh programs. Is this trite?

Mr. Barrrerr. To my knowledge there are only a few situations
in which a complete lunch program is provided without direct costs,
and these aré in selected test situations. As 1 indicated in my testi-
mony lhiere, we do have a pilot. program {it operation on this basis in
Memphis. :

My, Vevsey, Isn’t that exactly what these programs—the half
«ozen or 50 that 1 am aware of—isn’t that what they are intendel (o
explore, the same objectives that you have in this bill?

Mr. Bawrrerr. The objectives in the present proposal would include
the nutrition educations which is not being provided under ont present.
program.

My, VeYsSEY. Thuc would then be the only additional element?

My, Bartrerr. That would be an additional concept,

Mr. Veysey. And the rest wonld be duplicative of the other pilot
projects now going forward? )

Mr. Barrrerr. L think there are more items in this (han just the
nutrition,

Mr. Veysey. Can you point them out to.me, please?

My, Barrrnerr. The teacher, the training of the workers primavily.
The big coneern-that we would have here is development of a nutyiiion
edueation program and the training of woixers, 1ncans of administia-
tion, simplification of administration of the program.

Mr. VeYseY. T grant you there is a simplification clement if yon
say everybody comes in on a free basis. I think that is a simplification,
But what is the situation in these existing programs? Are you aware of
the program, for example, in Memphis, ‘Tenn.? T understand there is
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a pilot going there; al<o in Soattle, Wash., in Hoboken. N, ia
Bridgeport, Conn, i

My, Bawrngrr, Uain aware primarily of the one in Memphiz, and
our concern here is that making lnnches available to the children
without direet cost eliminates-the problem of identification of these - —

Mre, Vevsey, Isn’t that what these existing conuunity prozrams
are doing, the ones that | have enumerated? -

Mr, Bawrnerr. 1 am not familine with what the ofhers are doing,

My, Veysey. [t occurs to me, Mr, Bartlett, if vou are proposing or
advocating here an expenditure of $5 million a year to establish
additional pilots to find out much the same things that are now heiny
explored and studied in half a dozen locations in the Nation. | think
we should come together here some way and build on the experionee
that has already been funded aml the lessons that have already been
learned in these other jocations, .

I would like to commend to you cheeking on the experienee thas far
with these other pilots before we g in yet another pilot project on top
of that. That wonld he one observation,

Secondly, the whole objective of this bill, as 1 understamd it i~ to
find out some things, find out how people respond, what the cost would
be, what ihe cost of alternative delivery systems would be and what
the benefits would be.

But I fail to find in this bill apy requirements that that sort of
information comos out of it. In other words, there is no evaluation
reqairement in the bill, 16 just sets up the pilots without any real
<trong evaluation of performance against goals that we would like to
achieve,

I think this-is a serieus defeet, and how could we say we are going
to trv to find out these things without that heing in the legislation?

My, Barruerr, Perhaps that might be somewhat difficult to do. I
was ot carlier familiar with the bill to recognize thed this evaluation
procedure had actually been left out of it.

M. Veysey, 1 don't find it there, The chairman and the other
members of the conpnitier know 1 have been advoeating strong
evaluation =ections in mueh of the eduentional legislation going
through this committee. I would not want to see us put out a pilot
project without the meehani=m in it to assure us of finding information
on these questions,

My, Quig, Could you tell me what the cost per meal in Memphis is
under your new free program as compared to the cost per meal for
providing food when there were-some of the students paying for it?

My, Bartierr, The current cost is approximately 46 cents per
plate.

Mr, Quik, Does that take care of everything, the labor?

Mr. Barruerr, ‘That includes the reported cost that the school
itself has, administrative cost, warchousing, administrative, labor,
food purchases, nonfood, all of these items that go to make up the
present oot o (3 redins he nreeran,

Mr. Quir, Vit :sooe 0. et e Kitehen and the equipment
that went into it?

Mr. Barrewrr, This is not included. "These programs are operated
in existing kitchens that. were long established and this cost has not
heen included or reported in this operating cost.
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Mr. Quie. What was the cost before you went into that free
program?

Mr. Barrrerr. Last year’s cosi—of course, they have a system-
wide, about 146 schools involved—the cost per plate in this study
that they did last year was approximately 3 cents per plafe less than
the average cost Yor the rest of the schools in the system.

Mr. Quie. Why was it costing ‘them less? I see you have a labor-
saving figure here, a little over 3 cents per plate.

Mr. Barrrerr. This laber savings was due—when you caleulate on
a per plate cost you take i of the plates, all the lunches served during
the month or during the vear, and you still have the same arnonnt
probably of labor involved, If you have a constant level of children
eating daily, then you adjust your labor, your food purchases, and the
amount of food you prepare for the day to agree with the number  °
children that you are serving, so that-then you do not have these upg
and downs,-and highs and lows, as far as participation is concerned.
When you have low participation for the day, you probably have the
same amount of labor involved. You may have prepared the same
amount of food as you weuld if you kad a high participgtion. So the
level of participation in the Memphis city schools has been fairly
constant, so they know exactly how much to prepare for the day.

They have also eliminated labor in 1ot having to fool with collec-
tion procedures in these schools. These-are some of the reasons for the
cost savings.

Mzr. Quig. You have an average daily attendance of 8,539 and aver-
age daily meals served, 8,285. What was the average daily meals served
prier t¢ the program?

Mr. Bartrerr. The system average was about 70 percent whereas
our statewide average in the State of Fenmnessee is in excess of that.

Mr. Quie. Are you comparing then in your own evaluation the ex-

erience in these six schools with this district average or wiih the

tate average? Shouldn’t you take those same schools and compare
wha(i;?the experience was with them before and the experience after-
ward?

Mr. BarrLeTr. We can get that comparison. I don’t have it right
at my hand r. .t at this moment.

Mr. Quik. Can you send that up to us, because T think that would
be valuable in trying ourselves to determine that.

Also, what has happened with the throw-away food since ycu wént
to free meals as cor-pared to when some of the kids were paying for it?

Mr. BarrLerr. It is considerably less.

Mr. Quig. I mean thrown away by the kids.

Mr. BartrLeTT. I visited a number of those schools, and I saw very
little food thrown away.

Mr. Quie. I assume there is a lot of food thrown away when they
pay for it, end I can’t imagine changing to a program where because
1t was free that would .wse them to catiit.

Mr. Barrrerr. The food is very acceptable. It is well prepared. I
was in one of the schocls less than 3 weeks ago, and there was prac-
tically no food waste.

Mr. Quie. Is it better.prepared and is there a better choice of menu
now than there was before yor arovided a free progran?

Mr. BartrLerr. Iwouldnots 6 was any big change in the quality
of food. I just could not say the > would be any change.
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Mr. Quie. I wouldelike to have those figures of the amount that
was thrown away by-kids when they were paying for part of it and
the amount that is being thrown away now when it is free, and com-
pare it, becauseafiy helief is that if you pay for something you utilize
1t better than,if you are given it free.

Mr. Bartrerr. I would say the food waste in these schools is very
minimum. ' -

Mr. Quie. But you can get that information for us, the amount
that was thrown away before and the amount thrown away now.

The other question.I would have is if we go to free programs, Jdo
you think we ought to permit Dpeople to come in with vending machines
and choices other than what is provided in the school kitchen so they
conld compete with the school and also-have a chance to meet the
dict desires of .the kids? In the case of schools in some parts of the
cities where it is impossible for them to build a kitchen, perhaps a
private operator with a vending operation could come in there more
reasonably.

Mr. Barrrerr. Basically I am opposed to the outside people
coming i and trying to do a job that can be done effectively by our
own staff within our own facilities.

I would admit, sir, that perhaps in some of the programs in the
major cities that cthnic likes and dislikes come into this, and there
might be some difficulty on a planned systemwide menu where vou
might have difficulties meeting all of those needs or likes or dislikes.
But, basically, I believe that the school food service people themselves
can do the job as effectively and perhaps more effectively than can
the profit-motivated outside groups, given the same job.

Mr. Quie. Do you think there ought to be competition so they can
prove they could do it more efficiently?

Mr. Barrrerr. I have no objection to competition. If we are doing
an ineffective job, somebody should see what they can do to improve
it.

Mr. Quie. My feeling is that the Department of Agriculture
frowns on anybody coming in and giving competition. They try to
throw out roadblocks in the way.,

Mr. BarTLETT. For some 20 years this was in the regulations wliich
You are familiar with.

Mr. Quie. What about the percentage of the cost of the meals
that the Federal Government ought to pay for? What percent do you
desire? '

Mr. BarrLerr. I am sorry, I did not hear that,

Mr. Quie. In providing frec lunches now I assume that the Federal
Government would not have to pay 100 percent of the cost because
they do not have to pay 100 percent of the cost of education. The
Federal Government pays 7 percent of the amount of secondary and
clementary education cost. Would this be sufficient for the food
programn, just like education, or should we inove it to a higher figure?
Mr. BarTLerr. We should move it to a higher figure.

Mr. Quie. What level do you think we should move it to?

Mr. BarrLerr. I would think initially, of course—we are talking
now primarily of a pilot program—we would assume this would be a
comle)etely federally funded program for a pilot program. But for a
universal bill, certainly initially’ I would say we need to move to
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appreximately 90-pereent level at the Federal Govertment and then
have acceleraiion or reducing of this at later stages.-

Mr. Qeie. Eardier yon were talking abont providing food service as
sometiing comparable to providing edneation= The local schools are
willing to provide eiducation for the children even if the government
did not put up anything. but they nmst not care abont the food pro-
gram if the Federal Government has to pay 90 percent to induce them
to doit. 25 - =

AMr. BarrLerr. We have to go back to the recognition that a free
pubjic education program has been here nmeh,smuch longer than tle
coneept of a linch program as a part of it. 1 think it iz a matter of
needing to educate omr educators that food is essential to a good ednea-
tion progran. ;

Mr. Quie. On the other side they might be right. What if_we are
10 provide $2 billion for this program to make it universal? Do voun
think it wonld be better spent to spend $2 billion on feeding children
whose: parents can afford to feed them or to improve the quality of
education?

Ar. Bawrnerr. [ don’t think we can divorce, the needs for a good
nuirition, good food program. from the coneept that a child needs
this in ‘order to learn. 1 dow’t believe yon can spend it mmuch more
effectively in the other realms of education than von could if you
spent it for food. .

Miss Marmixs-May I add to that? I think that one of the reasons
we feel that universal school food service and nutrition ednceation is
so important—and we are referring to it as universal and not free
beeause we wonld like to get it away from the coneept of free, wellare,
in this arca—but mmiversal becanse all children need nutrifion and
antrition edueation regardless of the child’s socioccononiic level, his
cultnial pattern or what else, hie needs untrition, one-third of his daily
focd needs as & mininnmn at schooi each day. —

The reason lie needs this is for two purposess No. 1, he needs it to
fulfil his nntritional needs for physical and mental development.
Secondiv. if we are spending the biliions of dollars on cdcation tha
we are spending, we want to get the maximum benefits from the
edueational prograim. and if the child is hungry, it tnkes no difference
why he is hungry. whether it is becanse he does not have the money.
whether he spends liis woney for something cise, or whether he Las
poor food habits, we still cannot have him take Mll advantage of an
educational program mnless he is well nowrished or adequately
nourished.

AMr. Quie. I have a comment, but T will_yickl to Mrs. Green.

Mrs. Greex. 1 do’t think thére is any disagreement on that
question. But what is at issue here is if the parents are able to supply
good nutritious meals, then why should the Federal Government
or State or local govermment step in and say, “Even though yon can
feed vonr children properly; we will do it anyway”’?

\iss Marrix. Mrs. Green, I think we conld always look back 20
or 25 years; if we had started 2 nntrition education prograni in 1946
when the National School Lunch Act was begun, then we would have
been {eaching young:people to make wise food ehoices and those young
people that would have already learned how to make wise food choices
back then wounld be the parents of today. e -
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Bat. unfortunately. people do not spend their money wiscly. Often-
times when they have to cut down on family expenses. the first place
they cut is food, because they have an overhead.

\irs. Grepy. Then, what vou are saying is that all of the parents
who can afford to supply lunchies and other meals for their children
do net have enough brains to supply nutritious meals. Is that what
vou are saying?

Mizs Marriy. No.

3Mrs, Greex. But that is the only realistic interpretation of your
comments. You said we nmst edueate in the area of nutrition. I am
tilking about families that have just as much sense as the people
planniug school lunches and who have supplied their children through
ihe venrs with nutritious. well-balanced meals. My question is: Why
should the Government step in and say. “liven though you are doing
thi~. we will do it

Ve Marmix. i refer to the 1965 houschold food consumption
renort made-by the Departinent of Agriculture. This study indicated
thas fewer American families were well fed in 1965 thau in 1955.

Ars, Gueex. I don’t see that citing sucl a report has anything to
do with my question. I am talking about the families that. can afford
te supply netritiovs meals and ave doing so. Why should the Govern-
miens thea step in and say. #We will do it”?

NMiss Marriy, Because many of the families who can afford to do
it do not. They have not recognized the importance of nufrition to
their child.

M=, GreEEx. Aenrin, vou did not respond to my guestion. 1T am
refering to fumilies that do know a2bout nutrition, and know as much
»< vou or anvone cise. [ am talking about those families that ean
afford to supply nutritious meals. and do so. Why should the Goveri-
meat step in and sayv, CWe will supply the meals for your youngsters
and we will pay for it”’?

Miss Marriy. T reslly do not have an answer to that question, but
but mavbe we could look at. it from another point of view, and that is
from the standpoint of our goal of trying to help improve the educa-
itonal opportunities for disadvantaged children.

The curriculum experts tell us that one of the places that where we
need 1o work with disadvantaged children is in building his self-image
ane, oftentimes the poor child will not aceept lunch at school because
it is a free lunch and the children who are better off than he is finan-
cially do not get the lunch free.

Mrs. Greex. Now, apparently you are offering another reason for
supplying everyone with meals. Do you have any statistics that bear
up wlat vou just said: that the selective serving of meals to these in
need destroys the self-image of the poor child, and that the dis-
advantaged child won’t accept the free lunch becanse others are not
getting (hese meals? Are there any statistics (o substantiate your
assertion?

Miss Manrmix. To my knowledge, there are no specific statistics.
You hear school principals and school superintendents say this. T
dor’v know how vou could arrive at a statistical report to indicate this,

Chairman PErxixs, Mr. Quie.

Mr. Quik. Thank you for coming here today. One comment, though.
i guess [ would agree to the Federal Government providing the same
share for food services as they provide for the rest of education and, to
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the extent we could convince the Federal Governinent to increase its
degree of elementary and secondary school revenues, I would agree
they ought to increase their assistance for food programs so it would
come out the same percentage, but I think thai it 1s necessary for you to
convince parents and school board members and teachers, and not just
the Members of Congress, on the need for free food.

I know there are many motivations. I served on the Agriculture
Committee for awhile, and I know the motivation there.of providing
free food service for people. It is not just to help the nutrition of the
people. o )

T also know there is a temptation to think of one’s own aspect of
education, meaning the food service, and thinking that is the most
important of all. But I think we have a long ways to go in providing
an-adequate education as yet, and healthy functioning illiterates are
not going to be much help to the Nation.

(The following letter was received from Mr. Bartiett:)

Anericay Scroon Foop SERVICE ASSOCIATION,
Nashville, Tenn., May 11, 1972.
Ion. CarL PuRKINS, . .
Congress of the United States, House of Representalives, Commiltee on Education and
Labor, Rayburn House Office Building,-Washington, D.C.

Dear Sie: This is a delayed answer to at least two questions which weie asked
by wmembers of the Connnittee on Education and Labor when I presented testimony
in favor of HL.R. 13452, a Bill to provide for  program of demoustration projeets
to test und cvaluate the effectiveness, uutritional benefits, administrative pro-
cedures, and potential costs of a universal food service and nutrvition education
program for children.

As I recall the two guestions were as follows:

- (1) What is the difference in participation rate in the “all free” schools in the
pilot study in Memphis before-and after the charge for lunches was climinated?

(2)? What is the difference in plate waste in the Six-School Project before and
after?

On the enclosures I am providing answers to these two questions. It is requested
that this be included as a part of my testimony at this hearing.

Very truly yours,
. Lawrexce BarrTLerT,
Chairman, State Direclors Section.

(1) Difference between participation rate in the “‘all free’” schools in the pilot
study in Memphis before and after:

Fiscal year 1963-70 Fiscal year 1970-71

‘ ,Percent Percent

School ADA ADP  patticipation ADA ADP  participation
Geosgia Avenue......... 1,736 1,578 90.8 1,779 1,729 97.1
La Rose.. 1,451 1,124 77.4 1,348 1,324 98.2
Leath. 713 644 90,3 586 581 97.4
Locke. 997 882 88.4 883 874 98.4
Poster. . ... 2,013 1,554 77.1 2,166 2,152 99.4
B.T. Washmg‘ton L eoesemceemmem.rommm—eeeeirasmvessvanTsvann 1,762 1,755 96.6
Totalecueecoren-. 6,910 5,782 83.6 8,539 8,415 98.5

1 Did not participate in NSLP dusing 1963-70.

(2) Plate waste before and after: “The Area Supervisor with the Tennessee
Departinent of Education who is rvesponsible for supervising the School Food
Service Program in Memphis and who has observed these schools very closely is
of the opinion that plate waste (that which is discarded by the student) in these
six schools is very much less than many of the other schools that she supervises.
She also is of the opinion that it certainly is no greater now than it was before the
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“all free” program was started. The Food Serviee Director in Memphis has also
Indieated to me that he feels the plate waste is no more now than before the “all
free’” program began,
ALy own personal observation in visiting in one of these sehook not more than
two weeks before presenting my testimouy was that plate waste was very nominal.
The total plate eost (food-labor-other) in these six schools for April 1971 is
tabulated and shown in the following table:

Plate cost
School Apnl197)  February 1972t
GEOIRIA AVENUC . o oone i e e e aeecme e acamann «eon meem e eomeeeoe oo 0.355 0.397
LaRose,.. ... . .356 399
.374 485
429 476
....... 395 453
................ 459 448
395 .443
473 <502

tLatest month that complete data was available at the State office.

Chairman Perxins. Our next witness is ‘Mus. Virginia Ball, from
St. Paul, Minn., public schools.

I want to hear your comments in connection with the pilot program
for universal school feeding. o

We are only talking about lunch, not the breakfast program.

STATEMENT OF VIRGINIA H. BALL, DIRECTOR OF SCHOOL FOOD
SERVICE, INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICYT NO. 625, ST. PAUL,
MINN.

Mrs. Barw. Tt is o privilege for me to represent the major city
directors and_the Board of Education of Independent School District
No. 625, £t. Paul, Minn., before your conumittee today.

By way of background, the board of education and the school
administration mandated in 1967 food service for all children in St.
Paul as rapidly as it could be accomplished. Secondary schools and
three clementary schools serving handicapped children had been in
the school lunch program for many years. Fifty-nine clementary
programs were opencd between September 1967, and September 1971,
All of the 49,837 children in the St. Paul public schools have a hot,
well-balaneed, nutritious Iunch available today.

We have 92 Junch programs and this includes satelliting the school
lunch to four parochial schools, 31 breakfast programs, and four pilot.
programs for feeding the elderly in operation now. There are 35
kitchens which provide the lunel for their school and 57 satellite
schools. We have an average daily participation of 28,000 students or
approximately 62 percent of the enrolliment. As of Mareh 9, we are
providing free and reduced price lunches to 11,626 students or 24.2
pereent of the student body.

We wholeheartedly support the coneept of a universal food service
and nutrition education program. We feel it is essential and wreent,
that pilot programs be iustituted in both large and small city, urban,
aud rural districts on a districtwide basis. Problems in each of theso
areas arc often unrelated and feasibility studies are needed to find

86-070—72—3
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solutions that would insure acceptance of universal feeding by all
school districts.

After 2 vears of operation under Public Law 91-248, which was
certainiy the greatest thing that las happened to food serviee since
its incepiion, directors are finding, in spite of all of their precantions,
that it is virtually impossible {0 protect the anonymity of the non-
paying child. Administrators at National and State levels have not
been able o tell us how to comply suecessfully with this regulation.

Tamilies whose income places them in a bracket just outside of the
cligibility standavds for free or reduced price lunches cannot veceive
assistance and at the same time cannot afford n this inflated era to
pay for their children’s lunch. This forces them to carry bag lunches
which in many cases do not meet accepted nutrition standards. It
seems (o us that the “forgotten child” is the one who does not. (ualify
for free and can’t really afford to pay. Universal food service would
permit us to feed all of the elements of society without diserimination.

There is a direct relationship between the price of school lunch and
participation. Last year, in St. Paul, we had 26 schools in low income
arcas on totally reduced rates. The maximum charge was 20 cents per
lunch. Regulations were changed this year and we were not permitted
to continue this operation. Qur records show that we are feeding 14.2
percent fewer children in these schools now that the price of the lunch
has returned (o 30 cents for elementary students and 35 cents for
secondary.

Another area of concern for us is the nonpaying children who sell
or barter their tickets for things like cigarettes and money. Off the
record, the going price for a pack of cigarettes in one of our junior
high schools 1s three free lunch tickets. We recognize the children who
do this are in the minority, but we have no way of preventing these
situations.

We find that the administration of the guidelines as outlined by the
Department of Agriculture in providing policy statements for parents,
applieations for free and reduced lunch, eligibility standards, ac-
ceptance or rejection notices to parents, tickels, and so forth, to be
very costly.

We, in St. Paul, listed only those items to which we counld readily
attach a dollar value and found that this vear we have spent more
than $26,000. We could have provided children with 47,780 lunches
hased upon our last year’s cast fignre for the same amount of money.
This does not inelude intangibles such as sorting paid, free, aud reduced
tickets; making veports; selling tickets in our schools, and so forth.

We believe that implementation of universal food service into a
c¢ity system is not impossible. In St. Paul, we would need to provide
approximately 18,000 more lunches per day. We do not intend to
minimize such an undertaking but we do believe that with careful
planning, some additional equipment and personnel, we could accom-
plish (his from our existing kitchens. We believe that every .person
in food service wonld put forth that extra effort if-our goal of feeding
every child was attainable. 2

We recognize that the clerical and statistical reporting required
in a pilot universal food service program would be extensive but
would hope that once the problems were resolved and eriteria estab-
lished this aspect of the operation could be zsimplified. It scems to
many of us today that we spend more of our time keeping records




ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

15

than we do coneentrating our efforts on our first concern which is
to provide a hot, appetizing, nutritious lunch for children.

Another area of coneern to many of us is reimbursement for um-
versal food service. Until such time as there is a national accounting
svstem established for food service. we feel that a more equitable
method of reimbursement would be a fiat rate paid for-cach lunch
served since cost factors vary greatly from distriet to district.

We believe one of the most important aspecis of universal food
service is the assurance that every child has a luneh that will provide
one-third of the nutritional requirements for the day available to
him. regardless of parental income.

The National Nutrition Education Conference held last November
poinfed out the growing concern for the lack of good nutrition in the
diets of teenagers. Studies and surveys throughout the country have
shown that teenage diets from all cultural. social, and economic
groups are inadequate and deficient in many of the essential nutrients.
Reports also show thai this is nob due to the lack of cood foods. but.
from improper food choices. This could be corrected with nutrition
education.

Sound nutrition education which begins in early childhood enables
rach individnal throughout his life to make wise decisions in his food
choices. Research has shown that when individuals are repeatediy
given nutritional knowledge, they will establish good, lifetinie nntri-
tion praetices.

St. Paul is fortunate in having a nutrition resource person on staff
and the food serviee department has both a dietician and a nutritionist.
Itor the last year and a hall these people have worked with the local
dairy council in presenting inservice training to elementary teachers.
These workshops proved the overwhelming lack of training in nutri-
tion and the great need to have this subject added to the curriculum
at the college level for teachers.

We believe that the ultimate vesponsibility for nutrition edueation
in the elementary schools belongs to the classroom teacher. As a
result we are attempting to teach teachers to feach nutiition to
children.

In order to provide a sequential K~12 nutrition education program
as o part of the pilot programs for universal food serviee. materials
at the secondary level would need to be developed. We have found
that most programs pertain only to the elementary school and little
is available at the secondary level that seems to De relevant to this
age group.

A stndent committee from the 10 high schools in St. Paul has
been established to work with the food serviee department in the
areas of (1) improving school hmch, (2) basic nutrition edneation.
(3) means of communication between the food serviee departinent,
and the student population.

In summary we would like to suggest the lollowing:

1. There is au urgent need for universal food serviee and nutrition
education in schools today.

2. Districtwide pilot programs would answer our many ¢uestions on
the implementation and operation of such a program. The crists
approach to change under which we operate needs to he eliminated and
replaced with proper short- and long-term planning. The greatest
frastration the food serviee director has at the local level today is the
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lack of time for proper planning due to the length of time required to
interpret. and process new legislation.

3. We have hewrd in many instances astronomical figures used {o
describe needs for equipment and labor to implenment the universal
food service program. We are not authorities in this, but our experi-
ence in installing elementary satellite programs hax taught us that you
can feed an additional 200 to 500 cluldren from an existing kitchen.

4. For years we-have known ““that you cannot tearh a lungry child,”
and aflluence does not mean an adequate diet, consequently every
child should have an opportunity to participate in school feeding
programs.

5. Our nutrition training programs for teachers indicate a-definite
need for nutrition edueation to be taught as a part of teacher training
_curriculum. Teachers are obvioulsy the best approach for reaching
children with nutrition education.

6. The school food service programs are an integral part of every
¢hild’s education and should be treated as such. In other fields children
are not asked to pay for educational materials. Why should they be
asked to pay for their lunch?

7. Good childhood nutrition guarantees stronger and healthier
adults who will be better able to solve their own and the world’s
problems in the coming generations.

Chairman PExkixs. Mr. Quie?

Mr. Quir. Mrs. Ball, welcome to our committee. You did a great
job there in St. Paul.

1 just want to ask you a couple of questions.

When vou say universal food service, do you mean that no cost to
any of the ~tudents when you use the word “universal”?

Mrs. Bani. At no cost to the students, yes, sir.

Mr. Quir. Wiat is the cost per meal now?

Nirs, Bann, 541 cende.

Mr. Quir. Do you think you will reduce the cost if you went (o a
universal plan?

Mrs. BaLn, Yos, sir: ene reason being you will utilize your facilities
to far better advanisge. We have proved this in putting elementary
schools in our satellite programs. We have schools in St. Paul—take
Tarding High Scheol—in May-June of 1967 they were preparing
meals for 924 ntudents T believe. Coday they are doing meals for 2,460.
We have added one double convention oven and a baker’s table, and
that is all the equipment we have put in, and they are doing it.

Mr. Quis, The St. Paul schools, T understand, have some financial
difficulties, from what I have heen reading. Is that correet?

Mrs. Baww, They lost their bond issue last Tuesday.

Mr. Quie. And the state law evidently does not affect them
[avorably?

Mrs. Bawn., No, it does not. The other way around.

Mr. Qui. New, if the Federal Governiuent was going {o provide
some substantial additional money, do you think the people would
want thai to provide free food serviee to those who could afford to
pay for it, or do you think they would like to improve the education
in St. Paul and pay for some of the cost of aducating the children?

Mew, Bonn. Mr. Quig, of course, food serviee is my business. I think
every child should have an opportunity to have a hot lunch every
day. T do not thinl it should be based on parental income. 1 think 1t

o«
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should be a part of the school just the same-as you go to an English
class or a math class, the sane as vou participate in an athletic pro-
gram. This is all part of life.

IT these children have this opportunity, it seems to me that we are
insuring their ability to learn insofar as possible.

Now, T think it woukl he idealistic and probably not very realistic
to_say that every child would participate in the lunch program. |
think if we got 85 to 90 percent of the children, this would be good.
beeause vou.are always going (o have menus the ehildren are not going
to like. This-is a fact of life.

And in St. Paul we provide three choices for all secondary youngsters
every dav, two hots and a salad bar that meets (ype A requirements.

Mr. Quig. My children many times get their luneh in scehool.
Sometimes they don’s like the menu, and they bring their own. As vou
gnow. the Federal Government pays me well enough o | can afford to
feed my- children. Why would they learn niore in school if they did not
have to bring their 55 cents to school cach day?

Mrs, Bawnn, | don’t think your childven would learn more in school
because of this because it would not be a factor in your case.

But how do you go through all of the children in St. Paul and detoer-
mine who does and who does not? The fact that you have the money
does not necessarily mean it is so. You have parents who are working.
not at home when their chiidren go to school. The voungsiers pack
their own Junches. They pack what they want. They decide they don’t.
wank (o eat that day, they don’t bring a lunch. You have the people
who are more permissive than others who, i Johny says. “1 dow’t
like that,” Johnny does not eat it.

Mr. Quis. To some extent we have some responsibility for our-
selves, for our children, and if vou carried this philosophy to its
ultimate conclusion, Mrs. Ball—like Mrs. Green was talking about
the glasses—there are a number of people who neglect. their health.
I would say there are more people of wealth that neglect the health
of their children than neglect their diet.

I may be wrong, but at least. 1 observe that is being done. You can
carry it all the way through, and you end up where the Government.
could provide better trainming from birth on. o we might as well hegin
al 24 months of age when you ean get them weaned and put them
under the tutelage of experts, both nutritional experts and develop-
ment experts and education experts.

Mrs. Bawn. I would recognize what you are saying, and vet I could
say to you that since we have put the elementary schools in the school
lunch programs in St. Paul that we do not have nearly the difficulty
feeding the secondary youngsters. It is a part of life, They accept it.
At the younger age they have Jearned to eat the varieties of food that
we try to provide. We recognize that the first five times that you would
introduce something new that. it is not going to he aceepted. But it is
the sume way with going through a line and vou have a leader of a
group who says, “I like that.” The next six kids, even if they hate
it, thev will like it. 1t works hoth ways,

Mr. Quis. 1 sometimes wonder if the mucaroni manufacturers
have some contact with the American School Food Serviee Association.

Mrs, Bavn. This has been a problem child. But 1. think the vounger
you can start children learning to like things—-I think we need to do
more and” a better job in introducing foods to children, in having




T

-

-

18

them taste them, having them presented in such a way that it iz not
offensive, 1 think that it is not possible to decide to have Fisherian’s
salad today without some previous explanation to children of what
Fishernan’s salad is.

Mp Quis, 1t is my Teeling if you ean do that. you should do that.
even though it is my feeling the children whose parvents could pay
should. 1f there was an unlimited amount of Federal money. mayhe
we would say go ahead and try it, but you know this is very limited,
The problems of St. Paul are exactly the same problems the Ifederal
Government has, We are $40 billion in the rved this year. and to go {o
a universal program, the least you could figure wounld he $2 billion
more, T'he question then becomes should that $2 billion go to pay for
the food of people who can afford it themselves or improve the edu-
cation in many areas where the eduestion is inferior,

L hate to say that about education. hecause we are proud of the
svstem in this country and we do have an ontstanding education sys-
tenr, but it is inferior in some places.

[ have visited enough places to know they do not have adequate
education,

My own feeling is that $2 billion could be much more wisely spent-—
again back with the children who cannot afford it—Dbecause they tend
to have a greater educational disadvantage. Tt really bothers me that
children are zor.1¢ throngh school, finishing high school, not. wanting
to 2o on and do not have a marketable skill, They may have gotten
free food, butif they do not have a marketable skill, they have a difli-
cult time no matter how mtch they know about nutrition.

Mrs. Banw. I agree this is {rue in alimost. all aspects of education
today; there is not enough money. On the other hand, it would scem
to me that if pilot programs could be established—and [ certainly
would not he-one who would advocate 2 school. T don’t see what vou
learn from a school. T think it should be districtwide. I think you
should compile your statistics and prove that this is or is not, and 1
think that the savings in all of this ticket handling, all this record-
keeping—this is tremendous in St. Paul. We have gone to the extent
that there is no secondary child in St, Paul that has to ask anyone
for a ticket. We mail them to their homes. They just don’t have to
go to the counselor, the prineipal. I'n St. Paul the food service depart-
ment handles all applications. We do not put_this on the school
administrator. This iz part. of our job, and we do it.

Mr. Quie. I commend you for that, hecause you remove any onus
that might be placed on the student.

Mrs. Baru. But this is expensive. We could provide a lot of lunches
for the money we are spending on the administration of this.

My, Quie. Yes, vou could. T imagine that would be as muel as
paying for the free lunches for all of the students who are there,

Mis, Barnrn, We could provide a lot of free lunches.

Chairman Perkixs. Tiet me compliment you on some outstanding
festimony in my judgment.

The real issue here is whether it will be a worthwhile projeet to
authorize an expenditure of $5 million for fiscal 1973 and $5 million
for 1974 for a universal pilot school luneh program where all the
children will participate and receive fiee meals in the pilot. programs,
and some of the money will be used to evaluate the effectiveness of
the universal pilot. program.
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In vour judgment will it be money well spent, and, if so, why?

Mrs. Bavn, Mr. Chairman, in my judgment it would be money
well spent. e in S, Paul would like to be one of the pilot programs
and do whatever amount of work, and we recognize there would be
additional work that would have to be done in order to come up with
the statistics that would prove or disprove this program.

I think that there is a great need for it. T think nutrition education
is something that simply must be started in schools and L think until
such time as a program of this kind or another like it is inaugurated,
where this is & mandatory part of the education program, that you
are never going Lo get the students to begin their nutrition edueation
at the preschool level,

We have two scheols where we have preschoolers involved. We also
have a tots program where they start at four, and we are trying now
to develop a program for these youngsters in order that they under-
stand why they do what they do. Nutrition edueation is just like
cverything else. Lt is why you do ii.

Chairman Periixs, Thank youvery much. You have been a great
witlness, in my judgment. ;7

Chairman Perkixs. Come aroéund, Congressman Vanik,

L did not know you were scheduled to testify, but you proceed.
L am delighted to welcome you here. You have been a” great lender
in_the schocl lunch and breakfast program in this country, and I
think we all ug)prccinlc your leadership.

Chairman Perkiys. Do you want {0 make a statement at this time,
Miss Martin?

Miss Mawnix. Sir, I would rather hear from Congressman Vanik.

Chairman Perkixs. Go ahead, Congressman.

STATEMENT OF HON. CHARLES A. VANIK, A REPRESENTATIVE IN
CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF 0HIO

Mr. Vaxig. Of course L appreciate the time of the committee, and
L will endeavor to be brief.

You are to be most highly commended, Mr. Chairman, for your
constaut efforts to provide better food and nutrition service to all of
our Nafion’s children,

HL.R. 13452 iz a bill to provide for a program of demonsiration
projects to test and evaluate the effectiveness, nutritional benefits,
administrative procedures, and potential costs of a universal food
serviee and nutrition edueation program for children.

There are several things that strike me about this proposed 2-year,
$10 million pilot program. Under this pilot program, al! children in
the schools seleeted for participation will receive at least one nutritions
free meal a day. In other words, the nmission of the Department of
Agriculture and HEW will D2 to feed children—u mission which one
would think that they would be-glad to undertake.

This brings me to the point 1 want {o raise. For the past several
years, Agriculture has given every indication that it does not. really
want Lo feed children—in particular low-income family children, for
which existing programs such as school lunch, school breakfast, and
the special food services program were specifically designed.

1t 15 a strong charge to say that these agencies do not want to feed
hungry children from low-income families, that they do not want to

.
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provide the nutrition and health which is so necessary if we are to
provide the type of qualily school education referred to by the Presi-
dent in his speeeh of last Thursday. Yet the evidence supports the
charge.

Congress has tried Lo provide legislation and fnding to end hunger.
But agency regulations of recent years constaatly seem designed {o
destroy the intent of the Congress in this area. For example, last
vear's proposed changes in school lanch eligibility requirenmi=nts were
designed to cut the level of assistance by up to 2 million children.

1 might. say this is not the only area in which we have problems. T
am submitting to Congress 2 report on Internal Revenue laws which
we have passed. some of which the administration has elected not
to enforce,

It is my wnderstanding, Mr. Chairman, that your conumittee will
soon be holding hearings on the administration and adequacy of the
entire range of existing low-income feeding progeams, and 1 hope that
you will be able to do this in the very near future,

Over the years L have followed the progress of the special food ser-
vice program——section 3 of the School Lunch Act—with special
interest. This program is in a state of immediate cerisis—and if the
administration-of this program is any indication of the Department’s
commitiment or capabilities, L am not sure that they should be en-
trusted with the administration of new programs.

In December, to determine whether this progiam was functioning
properly, L polled the various State directors of the program, asking
whether they had adequate funds to feed the low-income children
envolled in this program during the rest of this school year and to
start their sunmmer feeding programs on time,

Mr, Chairman, they do not have adequate funds. Feeding programs
for low-income children will be cut in a mumber of the States beginning
April 1.

For example, last Thursday, I received a leiter from the State of
Maine \V]liCFl said:

Unless we receive an additional $25,000, we will have to eut hoth programs and
reimbursement. for April, May, and June. The USDA has advised ns that there
are no available funds for fiseal '72,

EFrom the replies which [ veecived from my poll of State directors.
Massachusetts and_Oklahoma will also begin curtiling programs in
the next 2 weeks. Hawaii will hegin making cuts in about 4 weeks.

Mr. Chairman, the administration of this program by the Depart-
ment: has been absolutely atrocious,

Oflicials have assured me that money would be reallocated from
States with surplus funds to those with shortages. Apparently that.
has not. happened, and—as T pointed out to the Department—there
simply was not enough “surplus” to make up for the shortages most
States are facing.

For example, California alone needs an extra $2 million to feed the
eligible low-income children enrolled in this program.

The Department has denied that extra funds are needed. Yet the
results of my poll reveal a shortage of at least $10 million.
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Perhaps the reason the Departmnent can say there is no shortage is
that they have discouraged applications or allowed inadequate
application periods—a situation which prevailed in Four own State of
Kentucky, Mr. Chairman. If peoyle are ordered not to apply then
obviously there will be no evidence of a shortuge.

In addition despite my findings of severe shortages the administrs-
tion is requesting the same level of funding for section 13 for fiscu!
Year 1973 as it received in fiscal year 1972, Obviously this will allow
absolutely no expansion in activities in a growing program, a program
which served 107 peicent more children in fiscal year 1971 than in
fiscal 1970. In fact beeause of higher costs a steady level of expendi-
tures nieans that actually fewer children wili be served in fiseal 1973,

‘The startup of this section 13 food program last. summer was a
fiasco. This year it will probably be a complete disaster.

As 'you know, funding problems created delays of up to a month in
the start of feeding programs last summen.

‘This year, new Federal Register regulations have been issued which
require the submission of summer applications, accompanied by very
difficult to obtain demographic and technical information, by Aprii
1—2 wecks from now. Applications received after April 1 will be con-
sidered in the order in which they are received. Obviously, many States
which are taking money from their summer allotment {o maintain
school year programs will be unable to estimate their need for the sim-
mer for some tire yet.

‘These requirernents, coupled with a number of other changes, have
led the Children's Foundation and the Food Research and Action
Center to conclude that the Department is attempting to inhibit
rather than enhance the participation of needy children in the summer
feeding program. 1 would like to include for the record a copy of the
criticisms made by the Children’s Foundation of the new Itederal
Register regulations.

1 ask unanimous consent.

Chairman Prrrixs. Without objection, it is so ordered.

(The letter referred to follows:)

Tnp Cnnnrex's Fouxpamos,
Washington, D.C., March 6, 1972,
Mr. Heeserr D, Roney,
Direclor, Child Nutrition Division, Food and Nulrition Service,
U.S. Department of Agriculture, Washington, D.C.

Desn Hirnerr Ronex: I am writing in response to the Notice of Proposed
Rule Making (7 CFRR Part 223) published in the Federal Register, Vol. 37, No. 32
on Wednesday, February 17, 1972,

In genceral, we are distressed by she shift in the emphasis of the sunmer feeding
programs as propesed. ‘The requirements for service institution participation are
clearly designed to eafer to the big cities which led the battle for fuli funding of the
Special Feeding Programs last summer.

Our specifie comments, objections and recommendations follow below:

Section 225.1: We are plensed that the Special Food Serviee Program for
Children is na longer a “pilot”’ program.

Section 223.2 (i-1): We recommend that full instruetions as to what constitutes
an “in kind"” contribution be published in the Federal Register and not simply in
shortened form in the two guide-books (one of which, according to your leiter of
Mareh 2, 1972, presently is not available.) Non-profit community groups who do
not regularly receive FN'S Instruetions are at a distinet disadvantage heeause they
are forced to add another step to their application process,

Section 225.2 (p-1): The administrative decision to divide the Special Feeding
Programs into two different programs: one, year-round non-school food service




and the other, smmmer food programs, is without staintory amthority, While this

Adivision wmay allow for moie eflicient administration—a landable move——it has

already providad a rationale for withholding fund- left over Iast sunnner from this
N fiseal vear's year round non-sehool food prograns.

Seetion 225.7 {a=1): The filing deadlineg of Aprii 1 is unreasonable for this yvear
in view of the late date of publication of the preposed rule making, Instead we
suggest the following wording: .

“1) Applications for participation of special stmmer ogrns for summer,
1972, which are filed within (6) weeks of the finzl publication of these amended
regulations shall be given st priority,

: »2) Applications for participation of smnmer programs for the following years
mu~t be submitted by May 1 of the vear, Approval or denial of the applieation
will be made within thirty (30) days or less of the date of filisg. Apphieations
received after May 1 ~hall be reviewed in the order of the date of receipt und
<hall he approved or denied within thirty (30) days or less of the dage of filing.”

Section 223.7 (a~1): Delete the proviso that applieatons shall bhe considered
15 the extent that funds are available for sp(-('inl progiams™. The size of the
federal budget for child. nuirition programs has no bearing whatsocror, on the
requirements for participstion of loeai service progrmns,

Npetion 225.7 (1-1): Applications {iled hefore the [designated] deadline shall e
considered in the following priority: (1) Fipst, applieations from serviee institutions
in econgmically needy «reas serving more than a majority of childien from low-
income families and eligible for free ox vedueed price meals. 12) fecond, applieations
from service institntions in economically needy areas hut serving less than a
majority of children eligible for free or redueed price meals, (3) Third, applications
from service institutions notb loented in cconomienlly needy areas nor serving &
majority of children eligible for free or reduced price meals bul ones which serve
children from low to middle-income families. ) Applieations from serviee
institutions which participated in the program in the prior ealendar year,

Seetion 225.7 (a=1): Delete the following requirement. which is irrelovantly
and cruelly hased on an nnknown but, nevertheless, projeeted federal hudget
restrietion:

“If funds will not permit approval of all appiientions received prior to April 1.
loes] interest as indicated by the level of loeal finaneial support and in-kind
contributions ghall he considered in determining which applieations shall he
approved,”

The spe ie focus of thiz program is on cconomically needy areas, and yet,
onfrageonsly demands that interest in participation he measured by loeal cash
and in-kind contributions,

Reetion 225.7 (h): The amount of data reguired to demonsirate that poor
ecanomic eonditions exist is mreazonably detailed. Only major cities with Jarge
|n1!ro:mcr:wies could produee sueh extensive documentationr withont enormous
effort.

This requirement diserimimtes against small, loeally run programs, forexa
<tmmer programs condueted by churehes or low-ineome community gronps.

Furthermore, the requirement that at least half the wotners in the area he en-
gaged in work ontside the home is blatantly sexist and is « misreading of that
portion of the statute addressed move specifieally to the Breakfast Program,

Recnion 2257 (b=1); This requirement that ndividual avplieations ¢ sab-
mitted for each site xerves little use other than to generate additional paper work
(which in turn serves to inerense the amount of the “in-kind contribhntion™
claimed).

To identify children eligible for free and reduced price meals counters the
l)rolm-linn of the anonymity of needy children ensured by the Congress and the
aws governing the child nutrition programs. The requirement that serviee insti-
tutions explain the methods they will use to identify needy children is regressive
and diseriminatory. .

Wi therefore strenuously objeet to this requirement and snggest hat the fol-

4 lowing wording be deleted: .. . a description of . . . and the methods to be
- used to identify children eligible for participation at the site, including the methods

to be used to identify tho<e children eligible for free or reduced price meals.”
Soetion 225.7 (¢): Competitive bidding for federal contracts should he required
no matter how small that contraet may be, If an arbitrary number must be
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~eleeted we strongly snzgest that any operation ~erving more than 100 children
u~¢ 2 competitive bid procedure.

Seetion 22510 (0): This section is un-lear and lgnores the legislative history of
Puilic Law 92-32 and in particular, the Joint “tplimatory Statement of 1he
Committee of the Conference. We have the folfon g objections:

by The term “severe need” used i the Conferenee Report = unreasonably
transiated into the requirement that “all or nearly all the attending children are
in need of free menls”, We sugges), insteadl, that that Ene be delered and that 1he
only requirement be that the Sade azeney or FNSRO judge whether or no the
~ervice institution is unable 10 comribnie financiatly w the program,

2) There is no real difference hetween the SO percenmium of the operating costs
aud 100 percentum of the ca<h expewditnre, “The conferees pointed out i their
report fhat Vhey “felt thal the Scerelery of Agrienllure ins been wnduly resiriclize in
asing the anthorily lo puy up lo 8 prreen! of the operaling costs, amd il is indended
thesl Joe will be move Iiheral in recoynizing cirenmstinees of s vre need and wiilizing
the anthorily lo pay all the operating cosls in snejr cnses,”

In view of 1his statcment by the conferees we urge the following wording: “"in
lien of reimbursemest for meals, up to 109 pereentum of the eash expenditure for
the costs of its food service, provided, hows ves, that “such financial assistanee <hall
not exceed 60 cenis for a luach of supper; 20 cents for a breakizst, and 15 cents
for <supplemenial food.

Section 225,18 (a-1): The Staie Agenzy or FNSRO <henld nnt -he responsible
{or 1the meand-time =chedules of each ~shve operation,

Onr conelusion is that these proposed rles serve Hizle ¢lse than the imerests of
the Office of Management and Budget.

We urge xou 1o revise them to serve the needs of hungey ¢hildren in Americea.

Bread and jusiice,

Barusrra Booy, Viee President.

Mr. Vaxik. In short, Mr. Chairman and menmbers of the commitlee,
it is my hope that you can base veur judgnents on i1. K. 13452 upon
existing child-leeding programs and the manner in which they have
been administered. Jt is my contention that the admizistration of
presenily existing child-feeding programs has been directed toward
trving to reduce systematically the sanuber of children to be fed.

In addition. this adminisiration has never. in my judgment, sought
to make the funds accessible in a timely fashion or with any degree of
Case.,

The major question i, will the administration continne to react
in this evnical and callous fashion, when the stakes are even greater—
as is proposed in H.R. 13452 presently before the committee?

I hope that as voun consider H.R. 13452, you will combine it with an
effort {o improve the existing programs which are so vitally needed.

Chairman Prrrxixs. Let me compliment vou again. Congressman
Vanik, on vour leadership. I regret that we do not have a majority of
the committee here this morning to hear this testimony. But you have
always been a great erusader in this arca. You have been in the past
and will be in the Iuture a tremendous help to this committee.

Let me thank you for coming here this morning and giving us the
benefits of your views.

Mr. Vaxtk. Thank vou. Mr. Chairman,

Mr. Chairman. | mizht ask unanimous consent to insert in the
record a letter that [ received from vour State on this issue.

Chairnian Perrixs. Without objeclion. 1t is so ordered.

Mr. Vaxik. [ also wanled to submit a letter [ had from Minnesota.
I thought Mr. Quic might be interested in this.

(I'he letiers referred to follow:)
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. DErARTMENT OF EDUCATION,
Frankfort, Ky., Janudry 6, 1972,
‘ Hon. Crarnes A, VANIE, -
‘ 3 Congress of the Uniled Stalcs, . —e
House of Representatives, Washington, D.C.
Dianr M. Vaxik: As requested in your letter dated Deeember 20, 1971, the
following information is presented:
| 1 Kentueky's Special Food Serviee Program for Children (Seetion §55) allocation
for Fisenl Year 1972 is $700,27S. =
| . Estimated dollar value of all Seetion 13 applieations received to date is:

. (@) Year-ronnd progrins oo cccccmcmmmmamae——————- o SE 5.35
| (b) Sunmer-only ProgRIMS. o o oo oo m e e memeees - 422596131
(c) Nonfood aSSIStANeCe oo ccccemeeomommmmammmamamcmccmaaon- 10, 175. 8S
-z =T
! O T P, A 671, 602, 74
| 3. Number of children being served under existing progrums to date:
gg) SY(:nr-ronndl PrOGIANS o oo o eeecmmmmmmmmm—mm—mc—cmm—mmmm—m—e= 3,943
) Summer-only Progriis. & o ccccmccmccmecemmammmeamem— oo --- 14,865
h " z‘ ?

4. Number of additional children who could have been ineluded if all appli-
eations recaived had been approved: 1,700,

It seems at. this time that Seetion 13 funds avaiiable to Kentucky for Fizeal 1972
are adequate. Had the participation period been longer in sever: cases, the
finaneial pictnre would have been different and no doubt additional fuads needed.
Your assistance and support with respect to Seetion 13 ax well as all other phases
of ehild nutrition are reeognized and greatly appreciated. It is commonly known
that most individual stztes as such do not contribute much finaneial assisance
(eash eontribution) towsrd the support of food service programs; therefore, the
offorts of Cougress and its grants-in-aid are most significant and vitai te the
continned suceess of all food service aetivity.

Sinecrely,

|
| Ot e e eeemeemeoem e mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmemeicans 18,508
|
|

C. E. Bevixs,
Dircctor, Division of School Lunch.
¥

DervartaeNtT oP EpucatioN,

St. Paxl, Minn., January 7, 1972.
Hon. “iarLes A, VANIK,
Congress of the Unilted Slalcs,
Housc of Ilcpresentatives, Washington, D.C.

Dx:ani Sin: The data you requested ¢oncerning the alloc:n_(;'(m':rif funds to
Minuesota for feeding of low-incowe children in ponschool situations through the
Speeial Food Serviee Program is attached. i - <

Representing the needy children of Minnesota, we are deeply grateful to yon
as author of the Seetion 13 amendment, This program not only gives dircet.lelp
to hungry children, but provides fringe benefits in the voeational training of adnlts
in the care of children. In Minnesota, we have nsed several of the day care eenters
as laboratories for voeational school trainiag.

We appreciate your help in obtaining sufficient funds not only to niaintain, but
expand this program. From the data given, you ean understand Vhat this fine
program will be terminated unless funds are given soon.

Thauk yon for your eoncern.

Respeetfully, -
Cuartes L. MaTruew,
Dircctor, School Lrinch Scclion.

Q
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SpecIAL Foop SERVICE ProGRAM STATE oF MINNESOTA
1. Allocations:

Yearly program 1971 o $343, 488
Swinmmer program 1971 __________ . ___________"TTTTTmmTTT 134,779
L 498, 267

Current balance on hand (year around) $125,271.32.

! Taeswn of $292.627.00 was requested but only $154.779.00 was allocated to Minnesota by the U.S. Depart-
ment of Agrieniture, As a result, we still owe the City of St. Paul for their Summer Program $26,187.27:
at that, we curtailed many applications received after June, 1971,

2 & 3. Estimated Dollar Value and Number of Meals Served:

Reimburse-
ment estimale Estimaied
average funding
Totat served  rate (cents) needed
1971-72 fiscal year—round program
(2) Total lunches.. omuee i om e oo $778, 509 37 $288,048
(b) Tota) suppers...... 184, 980 37 68,443
(c) Total breakfasts.... . 380,172 15 51,026
(d) Total supplements..._, 1,277,632 10 127,763
(e) Total funding needed (sum of 3,b, ¢,2nd d)evenene..... mmrrEsasmsemacammremeancanmemann $541,280
1971-72 fiscal year—summer program
(ag Total lunches., ... 211,772 43 116, 862
(b) Total suppers. . 29,112 43 12,518
(c) Total breakfasts.. 64, 128 15 . 9,619
(d) Total supplements. 276,357 10 27,636
(e) Tota) fundings (sum of 3,b, ¢, d, and d)oe oo oecenenn e memeesammmEemEasmancaamnennran 166, 635
Note: Tot2l SFSP funding (year round and )—$707,915. d expansicn of program—20 percent for 1973—

49,438. The total amount we anlicipate will be needed for the year round programs is $54 ,991. The present allocation
amousts to $343,328 leaving a balance of $202,503 o pay the balance of the claims fer the fiscal year 1971-72. Figures
unavailable for nonfood assistance,

Chairman Perrins. Do you want to make a statement at the
present time, Miss Martin?

Miss MarTiN. I would like to make a statement at some appropri-
ate time.

Chairman Perkins. Why don’t you commence now?

STATEMENT OF JOSEPHINE MARTIN, LEGISLATIVE CHAIRMAN,
AMERICAN SCHOOL FOOD SERVICE ASSOCIATION

Miss MarTivy. My name is Josephine Martin. T am administrator
of the school food service program, Georgia Department of Education.
I am chairman of the American School Food Service Association’s
legislative committee.

It is a pleasure for me to be testifying in support of H.R. 13452,
2 bill to test the concept of universal school food service and nutrition
education.

The pilot programs would provide answers to some of the questions
you are asking today—questions that we do not have answers for.

In 1969, the American School Food Service Association adopted a
blueprint for action, and that blueprint contained the concepts
embodied in H.R. 5291, a -bill to establish universal school food
service and nutrition education.
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Since the progrn started in 1946, the Federal Government has
been subsidizing all hanehes served—to rich and poor. The level of
subsidy varies with socioeconomic level of parents.

Anothier question o be demostrated with the pilot program is thm
food service is basie o the childs well-being. 1 is not a ~frill™ or
“option.” Tt should not be considered as ~athletic.” where chibdren
pay for tickets to the ballgame.

In behalf of the 49.000 mewmbers of American School Food Service
Association. 1 express appreciation to Congressmun Perkins, and the
mentbers of this commitice for leadership in advaneing child nutrition
programs through more adequate funding and legislation. )

Sinee the passage of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act
which made funds availeble in several States for school Tanches for
disadvantaged children, the relationship between hunger in the
classroom and the educution of the disadvantaged children has been
recognized,

Furthermore, studies reveal that malmtrition and undernutrition
exist among all socioeconomic greups and that hunger and. fearnioy
are related irregardless of the cause of Mmger. Cres®

The ESEA (tite 1) demonstration. Public Law 91248 passed in
1970, and Public Law 92-153 passed in 1971, have made possible for
schools to increase the nuniber of economically needy children having
lunches from 2.9 million in 1968 (o S.1 million in 1971 (Noveinber).

Lanshes are available to 44.8 million children daily and yet enly
95.4 million children haye lhmehes, 1 have been advised that the
mumber of paving children hes declined drastically in the po<t fny
vears. Fewer paying children are cating now. Increase in sale priee
means fewer payving children.

The goal of H.R. 5281 is to provide at least one meal each day 1o
all children as an integral part of the educational process; to incor-
porate natrition education into the school food serviee program; to
provide funds to local systems to assist with professional stefiing.
The goal is to provide universal food service by 1975, The stati~ties
cited above reveal in a starting manner the magnitude of the ¢4k,

The growth of school food serviee since 1968 has been phenominal.
but the growth has basically been along the lines of sehool food sorvice
systems as they have evolved over the past 25 years. If the ~cheol
food service practitioner and the educator are to be in a position (o
implement the universal program in 1975 which will not only require
expansion in existing schools, but expansion into buildings without
facilities, we must begin now to build pilot programs to test procedures
and techniques to devise strategies and to build models in all types of
sehools and districts throughout the United States to serve as gnides
for the program. .

We must find answers (o questions being asked by proponents of
universal scheol focd service as well as by the opponents. There wre
plaguing questions related to universal school food service thay have
not beea wuriswerad, becanse they have not been posed.

Many schools i Georgia ave serving ali children daily, but none are
serving all children under the concepts of H1.R. 529 1—universal ~chool
food service and nutrition education. So new questions will Le posed in
{est situations, and answers will be found, questions relating to qua‘ity
service o pupils. effective nutrition education; administrative proce-
dures, quality control, and cost effectiveness. -
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In June 1971 when the General Subcommittee on Education heid
hearings on 11.R. 5291, Congressiman Puciuski stated :

I hope Congress will give nutritionists 2t deeade in which to prove their worth:
to prove the vital velationship berween food and health, food and learning, food
and productivity.

The Congressman added that the cost of universal school food
serviee would foree nutritionists to be effective, or the taxpayers would
uot. support the program, .

As our objectives are focused ou providing a lunch for every child.
we simultancously realize that it is not enough just to provide a meal.
Dr. Bruno Bettleheiny, eminent psychologist, University of Chicago.
states “how vne is fed. and how one eats, has a larger impact on the
personality than any other human experience.”

A statement such as this makes us wouder how we can provide
nieals to all children in such a way that the lunch has positive
impact on the child’s personalivy development.

Auother noted psyehologist-edueator. Dr. Robert J. Havighurst.
recently wrote that special emphasis should be placed in the curriculum
for the disad vantaged child in two areas: (1) The study of nutrition at
grades three or four and eight or nine; (2) opportunities to meet
self-image needs of ihe child.

[t appears then that universal school food serviee and nutrition
education offers -opportunities for helping to fulfill both these
curricalum needs. The question is, how?

The answer will come through pilot programs. Other (uestions
which must be answered if the goal of wniversal school food service
and uutrition education is reached include the following:

I. How will the Nation mobilize its resources to got meals in all
schools? What are the eflective delivery systeins available under
varying conditions?

2. How will the program plamers devise sound school nutrition
programs that have relevance for yvoung people? One that considers
cthuic and cultural backgrounds. varying nutritional needs, develop-
mental needs of youth in accordance with physical, emotional, and
social growth.

3. How do the program plauners build quality and cost control into
the program? We must build a model to demonstrate to the taxpayer
the integrity of the program, and the quality and cost controls expected
in a universal program.

4. What is an cffective nutrition education program—one (hat
results in_improved food selection by the child both in and out. of
school? We have very few models to emulate.

5. How much and what kind of staff is needed to fully implement.
ILR. 5291 at the school, school district, and State level. Personnol
will be the key to program suceess. At this point, there are no national
staffing standards, or job specifications for food scrvice prolessionals.

6. What are the organizational structures most conducive (o effee-
tive programs at the local, State. and Federa! level? What are the
administrative costs.

7. What arc the coustraints or barriers to effective implementation?

8. How nuch will the program cost? Fow much should the program
cost.?

At the risk of being repetitive, 1 again congratulate you aud thaulk
you for introducing IT.R. 13452, a bill to establish pilot programs in
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universal school food service and nutrition education in centers across
the State.

The bill, if passed, will provide opportunities to get answers or
direction to the questions listed above.

As the school food service administrator in a State where 84.5 per-
cent of all children have school lunch daily; a State that has full support
of school administrators for food service, I'm very cognizant of the
growth problems encountered in expanding programs.

Some problems are alleviated with time under the present structures;
other problems scemingly will be omnipresent. For example, let us
look at a problem that exists in the program as it is operated today.
Assuming that all children have lunch with some paying, and others
not paying.

How can we proteet the anonymity of the nonpaying child? Under
the very best conditions, the child himself knows that he is getting »
lunch at no cost or a different cost because he is poor: What does this
do to his self-concept? In this case, it it possible that lunch docs as
much harm as good?

How can we protect the needs of the child who refuses to purchase or
accept a lunch because of pride, or because of his felt needs in relation
to his money?

How can we reduce administrative procedures to simplify school
food service operations? Schools are required to keep deily records of
meals served by paid, free, reduced lunches; white, black, Spanish-
surnamed, American Indian children. Applications and announce-
ments are sent home each year—in many instances to parents who
can’t read, in some instances to homes without parents. Administrators
are secking answers to these questions.

As a member of the National Advisory Council on Child Nutrition,
I sm pleased that H.R. 13452 utilizes that group to consult and assist
in planning and evaluating the pilot programs. The council recently
made its first annual report to President Nixon.

The top priority recommendations related to expanding food service
into all schools, and developing effective nutrition education programs.
I believe the National Advisory Council will be effective in helping to
evaluate the results of the pilot programs. However, the group will
need technical advice from specialists in evaluation, management,
nutrition, and child psychology.

To implement universal sehoael food service and nutrition education,
funds are needed for local administrative costs as well as State and
Federal costs. Therefore, I trust that section 810(c) will be amended
to include (4) local administration expenses.

Thank you for giving me the opportunity to testify today in support
of H.R. 13452. I sincerely hope that the bill will receive immediate
consideration by the Congress in order that the pilot centers can gear
vp to start the test in September.

Scliool Food Service has finally earned for itself & place at the educa-
tion table. Such an honor carrics commensurate responsibilities. The
pilot programs will provide essential program planning, testing,
revising, and retesting of techniques, strategies, and contents to make
the universal school food service and nutrition education meaningful
to the lives of all young people in America as it contributes to their
health and well-being.
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Chairman Perxins. Mrs. Martin, 1 recall you came before the
committee several years ago when we were trying to improve the
school lunch program for the needy and we did improve that program
I just want to compliment you on the great leadership that you have
given to implement the program to provide nutritious meals to needy
students in elementary and secondary schools.

Your contributions have been tremendous. I certainly hope we can
move the pilot program without too much difficulty.

You have been most helpful to the committee and again, let me
thank you.

Our next witness is Mr. B. P. Taylor, superintendent of schools,
San Diego Independent School District, San Diego, Tex. Come around.

We are anxious to hear from you, Mr. Taylor. Without objection,
your prepared statement will be inserted in the record and you can
summarize your statement in any way you prefer:

STATEMENT OF BYRAN P. TAYLOR, SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS,
SAN DIEGO INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT, SAN DIEGO, TEX.

Mr. Taynor. Thank you. I would like to start out with a brief
written statement and then I will answer any questions you may have
about the program. As I started, my name is Bryan P. Taylor. I am
superintendent of San Diego Independent School District in San Diego,
Tex. T have been superintendent in San Diego for some 13 years. San
Diego is located-in (leep southwest Texas. Our school district consists
of some 400 square miles: 1,700 students of which some 99 percent
are of Latin American descent.

We are a poor school distriet from the standpoint of taxable prop-
erty. Some 60 to 70 percent of the students come from families that
have income of less than the poverty guidelines and, consequently
will qualify under the guidelines set forth by the U.S. Department of
Agriculture, The students of course, qualify for free meals.

We lave been participating in the national school lunch program for
many years and I think the records will show that we have gladly
participated in this programn knewling full well that it is a good one.

When it was possible to serve breakfast under this program we were
among the first to serve, not just a breakfast consisting of dry cereal,
toast, and milk, but a breakfast consisting of bacon, eggs, hot cereal,
homemade bread, fruit juice, and milk.

For the past 18 months we have been serving three meals 2 day to
our children, I think that we are probably the only school district in
the Nation doing this.

I have been in favor of universal feeding for public school children
for many years. We at San Diego Independent School District have
been in reality practicing this for the past 4 or 5 years since above
90 percent of our students eat at the cafeteria. .

The public school cafeteria is a perfect meeting place for the rich
and the poor, the black and the white. The public school cafeteria is
a place where the academice talented may converse with the lower
academic achiever. The 210-pound football player may converse with
the 100-pound victim of cerebral palsy. This is really what education
is all about. Out of our program have come some significant statistics
such as: (1) our attendance has been better since our feeding program
started; we consistently have over 95 percent attendance, (2) we have
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very few dizaipline problems, (3) the students have improved in their
arades, (4) our dropout rate is practically nothing, and (5) our children
are muceh healthier according (6 a national health survey.

We have found that the school eafeteria is the one place where all
students may receive equal treatment. There are some byproducts of
a program like this. For instance, our foothall and baskethall teams
have Tor the past few vears been much better then they were prior to
this program. The students themselves seemt to understand each
other’s problems a whole lot better. We find that very few students and
almost none of the teachers leave the campus during the noon hour.

Chairman Perkixs. Let me make this observation. You are making
a great. statement, Superintendent Taylor, but the entire statement
haz already been inserted i the record. Tell us briefly. in response to
my question, why we need the universal pilot program.

Mr. Tayvonr. | think you need the wniversal pilot program for one
reason, (hat a lot of people are not convineed that this is the right
thing to do. 'That rich kids should be given free meals along with poor
kids. that they should associate together completely through the school
day,

I think we have to show the publie this. 1 think this is-the intent to
the bill, to show the-people that a universal lunch program is good
for public schools and students and people alike. 1 think the great
thing that it will do is keep the majority of all the students on the
campus during the day. And 1 think this is where our public schools
have a tremendous problem today, keeping kids on the campus and
under supervision.

Chairman ‘Pergixs. That is a point that has not been made, You
make that statenent because there would be no necessity for them to
leave or have excuses to go and get luneh and therefore they would be
on the campus all day long.

s TavLor. Yes.

Chairman Pezgixs. Or en the school grounds all day long.

Mr. Tavyror. Under supervision,

Chairman Perkixs. That will eliminate a lot of other problems
that go along with leaving the school grounds, and going out in the
comnnmnity and town and elsewhere under the pretense of getting
lunches.

My, Tavynor. Yes. this is a basic reason. One of the underlving
basic factors we went to the third meal. We keep the student on the
campus from the time school is out until 5:30 or 6. We think this is
what public schools were made for.

Chairman Perkixs. Do vou.find that there are numerons children
who are able to buy their lunch, but whose parents negleet to see that
they have money and so they don’t eat lunch at all; in other words,
the fail {o eat. lunch, even though they can well afford it?

Mr. Taynor. T think they fail to get tanch and T think, too. they
will take the money that their parents give them and not particntarly
buy food with it. They might buy cigarettes or something more harm-
ful with this money.

Where today under the universal lunch program. there is no need of
giving them any money af all. There is no need of them having money
at school when the lunch ig there available for them.

" (Tllmirnmn Perxins. Thank you very much. Superintendent
avlor.
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O next witness i Mrs. Adelaide Neily, Fairfax County. Va..
public sehools,

We are delighted to welcome you here this morning, Mrs, Neily,
please vroceed with your statenient,

STATEMENT OF ADELAIDE NEILY, FAIRFAX COUNTY, VA.,
PUBLIC SCHOOLS

Mr<. Nemy., Mr. Chairnman, [ appreciate bejng asked or permitted
to express my views in regard to H.R. 13452, We are very conscious
that our objectives have heen very hard to meet in local school
distriets heeause of inereased costs of food supplies, equipment and
labor, @ud a reduced or curtailed funding of owr program which has
necessitated inereasing the price of lunches to children in our localities,

In previous years, when ave had a lunch price at 25¢, the county
average was 63.2, but to be able (o balance the budget we have had
to increase the price of our meals. Therefove, our participation has
dropped (o 54 percent.

Chairman Periaxs, Dropped from what pereent?

Mes, NELY. From 63.2 down to 54. It has taken us all these yvears
and we have never recovered.

Chairman Perxkins, What. was your price of your school lunch
when you had reached the maximum of 63 pereent of your students?

Mrs, NuiLy. Twenty-five cents in elementary schools and 30 cents
in the intermedinte and high school or juior high level.

Chairman Perkixs, What is it today at the junior high level?

Mes, NEwy, Forty-five cents and 35 cents at the elementary.

Chairman Perkins, That does not include a drink or milk or
anything along that line, does 1t?

Mrs, NEiny. Yes:it does include milk with their lunch and desert.
every day,

Chairman Perrkixs. And you are serving a lunch in Fairfax County
at 45 cents?

Mrs. NEILY. Yes.

Clairman Perrrns. And at {he 45-cent price vou have dropped
from 64 percent. participation down to 53?

Mrs. Noeruy, Yes. We have defeated our purpose beeanse we are
not feeding as many childven. The only thing we have accomplished
is baianeing the budget.

I discussed thiz problem with the director of food service in Mont-
gomery County because they are (rving a unique study right now,
They have reduced the price of their meals in six schools. They have
gone from 50 cents (0 35 cents in the clementary level and frem
55 cents at junior high schools to 35 cents. This has been going on
since January 3,

If you will note on page 2, in this brief time they have already
inereased participation. When 1 look at the five high school divisions
in Virginia with participation of 89.7 to the lowest at §5.5, these
school divisions have lunches at 25 wvd 30 cents.

Bill TL.R. 13452 provides the opportunity {o provide meals to all
children and to obizin reliable data in regards to the participation,
Tt provides an opportunity to reach all children without financial
stioma.
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In spit of all the effort and expense of devising means of protecting
the child who is eligible for a free or reduced price meal it has been
more or less a dismal failure, in particular at the intermediate and
secondary level.

Most school districts provide meal tickets for the child who is
eligible. One finds at the intermediate and secondary level that the
student who has a ticket is rather conspicuous. It is not uncommon for
o teenager to refuse to accept a meal ticket when clearly eligible.

At the same time studies reveal dietary deficiensies among this age.

H.R. 13452 would provide an opportunity to begin nutrition educa-
tion with the very young child. Unless we can establish desirable
dietary patterns in the young, unless we can assist children in nccepting
a wide varioty of foods, unless we can provide him with correctinforma-
tionn to differentiate between what is good and proper food as ad-
vertised in the mass media, unless we can teach the reason and need
for accepting food on arising in the morning before he begins his
school day or his play day—we have failed our youth. Local supervisors
of food service commend you for providing for nutrition education for
children in this biil.

Bill H.R. 13452 will challenge educators to make nutrition informa-
tion more interesting, more dynamic—for students like many adults
are not motivated by an interest in nutrition per se—they want the
things good nutritional habits can assist them in attaining. There will
be involvement of team teaching o incorporate nutrition in many
subject fields.

Student involvement will be a must to have effective change in
youth's dietary habits. No longer, and rightly so, can youth be told
what to eat because it is good—nutrition teaching must be centered
upon his needs.

Briefly, I believe bill H.R. 13452 provides an opportunity to study
and evaluate the effectiveness and problems involved in universal
school feeding and nutrition education for all children before increased
expansion and expenditures are made. It will provide nutrition aware-
ness at all levels, pupil, teacher, parent-community; it will provide for
the elimination of financial stigina attached fo eating, and place the
child on the same level with all his classinates; it will provide for reduc-
tion of school administration time spent in determining who is needy,
it will provide for reduced expenditures of labor at all levels spent on
compiling, computing of financial accountability records; it will pro-
vide for an opportunity to truly eliminate hunger among children of
our nation; it will provide for an establishnent of values in the edu-
cational field by making all facets of the educational program equally
available to all children without revealing family income or family
size; and it will provicde an incentive to local school per=onnel who have
endeavored and struggled to assist with improving dietary habits of
children to put forth greater effort because we are supported by the
interest of the Congress of the United States.

Thank you very much for permitting me to express my views.

Chairman Perrkixs. Just tell us in a few sentences why you feel
Tairfax County students in both elementary and secondary. schools
should enjoy the benefit of the free school lunch?

Mrs. NEiLy. I am-from the so-called affluent county. Yet we have
over 5,000 students who are eligible for free or reduced price meals.
We have many parents who cannot read or write. I feel from our
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studies of the breakfast program we have found that the affluent
have very poor eating habits. We find children coming to school with
dollars, not 45 cents, who have spent a portion of that money before
they have gotten to school on soft drinks, cigarettes, et cetera.

I feel we would be doing the eitizens of our county a great service
in combiniug nutrition education with proper food for their children.

Chairman Perxins. Thank you very much. You have made a very
wonderful statement and L appreciate the fact that you came over Lo
give us the benefit-of your views.

So far as I know, this concludes the testimony this morning.
This may conclude the testimony on the pilot bill F.R. 13452 unless
I decide to call a few more witnesses, but I think the bifl is so simple
in purpose that we are either for the proposal or we are against it.

It would be my viewpoint that we should bring it before the full
committee for a markup at the carliest possible date. I am hopeful
that we may get to it at the regular meeting.

Unless there is somebody else in the room that wants to give his
views on the legislation, the committee will adjourn subject to call of
the Chair.

Thank all of you for your attendance and your appearance here
this morning. You have been most helpfut to the commitice.

(Whereupon, at 12 noon, the committee adjourned, to reconvene
subject to call of the Chair.)

DEPARTMENT OF Scuool NURSES,
NationaL EpucaTioN ASSoCIATION,
March 20, 1972,
Hon. CarL D. Purkiys,
Chairman, Commillce on Education and Labor,
U.S8. House of Representatives,
Washington, D.C.

Dear Mr. Perkins: As Legislative Council TRlepresentative from California
to the Department of School Nurses, National Education Association, on behalf
of approximately 2000 school nurses in California, I would iike to express support
for H.R. 13452—Nutrition Program for Children.

School Nurses have long realized the influence of nutrition on the ability to
learn. Under-nutrition and mal-nutrition reduce concentration, lessen the at-
tention span, und eause excess fatigue; plus the added factor of poor physical and
mental growth. The Maintenance of nutritional well-being is a needed role for
schools to play. The school program eannot meet these naeds by providing lunches
only, but inust incorporate nutrition edueation in the curriculum. Your interest
is greatly appreciated by all school nurses who see these necds duilf’.

Food Serviee and Nutritional Education Programs for ai! children must be
considered. The Department of School Nurses-National Education Association
stronglg_support, all moves in this direetion.

1

ncerely.
’ Reaixa M. Eppy, R.N,, B.So,,
Legislative Council Representative,

THE AMERICAN DIETETIC ASSOCIATION,
Chicago, 1ll., Arril 4, 1972,
Hon. CarL D. Perxins,
Chairman, Committee on. Education and Labor,
U.S. House of Representatives,
Rayburn House Office Building,
Washinglon, D.C.

DEAR MR. CriAirMAN: The American Dietetie Association is pleased to present
a statement in support of H.R. 13452, a bill to provide a program that will test
and evaluate a universal food service and nutrition education prograun for children.
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The Americtn Diototie Assoeintion repiesents 23,000 dietitians whose objee-
tives are: the wnprovement of nutrition of humin beings and the advanccment
of thie seience of dietoties and nutrition as woll as edueztion in these and nllied
nreans,

Fhic is the third opportunity which we have had to express our viewpoint to
Congress concerning the school food service programs. In 1903, The Ameriean
Dictetie Association presented testimony in support of legislation to garantee
o lineh o needy ehildren at 2 free or reduced price. Early in June of laat yoar
our representative testified before the Senate Subconmmittee on Agrienltural
Researeh and General Legislation in support_of S0 1919 and 1L.R, 5257, bills to
make the sehool breakfast penmanent., Later in June of 1971, we testified before
your conmittee concerning LR, 5291, the Child Nutrition Act of 1971,

it this Intter testimony we stated, *Our Association is convineed that at leust
one meal that supplies at least one=third of « child’s daily nutritional requirements
<hould be furnished every school ehild,” Our position has not changed. Thereiore,
we support the provisions of 11L.R. 13452 which will allow the establishment of
prograuns to test the feasibility of the coneept of miiversil school lanch.

In previons testimony we have expressed concers that there be nitotion
edueation programs correlated with every child feeding program. We believe
that hungry children must be fed but we insist that there be applied nutrition
taught in conjunction with each program if the basie purpose of such progeams,
the development of citizens with an awareness of the prineiples of sound mutri-
tional practices, i< to be achieved. We are most pleased that in 11.R. 13452 there
iv provision for a mitrition edueation program in =chools solected for participation
in the demonstration projects.

P On March 7, 1972, the National Advizory Conneil on Child Nutritionu in it=
first mmual report 1o President Nixon recomntended that muceh greater e hasiz
be put on teaching children the essentials of good nutrition. The report s:u('l that
the teaching of nutrition “has become a forgotten part of the enrrienhun with
toachors reluetant to include it is their insttuetion due in many instasees to
their own lack of traiming in nutrition and to the press of other errie-
ulum subjects.”

Following a meeting of this National Advisory Counetl with the Presidont on
AMareh 7, the Secrotary of Agrienlture said that the Administration wonld support

the recommendations of the Council,
Weo recommend, therefore, that the National Advizory Council on Child
Nutrition assume an active role ot only in “evaluating the resnits of the pro-
gram as authorized by this seetion”™ (Section 14 of ublic Law 92-248), bt
that. they or their approved representatives be active in the development of the
related mtrition edueation program before nnd during the demonstration proj-

cets as provided for in LR, 13452,

We recommend further that in those sites seleeted for the pilot programs
there be established local advisory councils to monitor the progress of the pro-
grams. This should be of invalnable assistance in establishing programs suited
{o “varying ethnic and racial curollments” as stated in [LR. 13452,

The provisions of 1R 13452 should be instrumental in testing and developing
new methods of food service delivery, research that is certainly necessary if
the concept. of nniversal school food serviee is to be realized. We recotnmend

. that in the establishnrent and supervision of the teat programs a qualified dictitian

be employed by the administrative body,

Until sneh time that there is suflicient evidenee to vefute the objection that
universal zeliool laneh i too costly and nnfeasible to administer, onr conviction
that this.is sonnd nutritional practice wl not be realized. Demonstration proj-
eets as ontlined in the provitions of 11LR. 13452 will be of great assistanee in
collecting the required data.

I wonld appreciate it if this Jetter conld be made a part of the printed record
of hearings.

Sincerely,

Kararine B. Maxenester, R.D.
President.
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January 24, 1973,

S

To the sponsors of Citizens' School Inquiry:
bt
T Saskatoon Teachers' Association
Saskatoon Separate Board of Education
Saskatoon Public Board of Education

My fellow membe s of the Inquiry and 1 are pleased to present
the following report which represents the findings and recommendations
of the Citizens' School Inquiry.

We thank you for the trust you expressed in granting us
complete independence as we carried out this assignment,

Conscious of our limitations as non-professionals in education,
we hope that we have fulfilled the mandate that you gave us by honestly
and accurately reflecting the opinion of our fellow citizens.

&
The Inquiry members have considered this a most worthwhile and
interesting project and have appreciated the opportunity to serve

voluntarily our community in this way.
% v

Yours truly,

N V)Y by oy
S ; -

- E. N. Hughes,
. Chairman, Citizens' School Inquiry
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INTRODUCTION

-~

The Citizen's School Inquiry was conceived and sponsored by the

-

Saskatoon Public and Separate Boards of Education and the Saskatoon Teachers!

~

Association. Funds were provided by the two boards., The Teachers!
Association provided help in setting up equipment for public hearings,
taping these sessions and providing such other assistance as the inquiry
required from time to time.

The sponsors were prompted té establish the inquiry byAthe question
of whether they were providing the kind of school services that the community

really wanted, While the sponsors suggested some broad‘termb of reference,

the inquiry group eventually embodied their objectives in the following
sentence: "To determine and assess what the citizens of Saskatoon -expect
from their e1ementa£y and secondary school systems.! 1In order to reach ﬁh;s
goal, the inquiry group decided. to seek public opinion by soliciting written

briefs, conducting a random survey, and holding public meetings throughout

the city. Briefs were invited by advertising in the various media, by

letters sent to various organizations, and by notices sent home through the \
schools., In all, about 200 such documents were filed with the inquiry.
They ranged in length from submissions of one page to veritable volumes.

A significant number of these briefs were from senior students, following a

special appeal to them.

Though the members of the inquiry anticipated that a considerable

volume of material would be generated by briefs and public meetings, they

+

felt strongly that it was important to réach those persons who would

hesitate to write a brief or to appear before a hearing. The inquiry group

felt that these people #h the community should be provided with a voice in

-1-
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the deliberations, and that their opinions should be sought out befcre any
k public discussion of the issues, In order to reach this grass roots group
E Market Facts of Canada Limited, a public attitude research firm, was
.engaged to conduct a study in the City. This firm first held five meetings
with representative small groups in order to determine concerns about

Saskatoon schools. Reactions were used to design a questionnaire. Following

Rl

this, 420 persons were interviewed in their homes and asked to respond to

ko

97 statements and answer 6 open-ended questions of a general nature. The
open-ended questions involv=d the participantswriting out their generalized

views of the system including their likes and dislikes of it, the one best

o

thing about it, and -the area réquiring greatest improvement,

The inquiry group held a series of seven public meetings which
were attended by approximately 1,400 persons. Many of those attending, but

- by no means 511, took part in the discussions which followed the verbal

presentation of briefs, The observations of speakers at these meetings were
recorded and transcribed.

In summary then, the inquiry had at its disposal 200 written brie.s,
the report of Market Facts Public Attitude Survey.and the transcribed
comments made at public meetings. This material was combined to form the
basis of thisireport. Thus, in all, more than 2,000 persons came in direct

A

contact}with the inquiry. In addition, some of the briefs submitted were

“

ke
from groups, such as home and school associations and other civic and pro-

fessional organizations. The members of the inquiry would like to express

thanks to those who participated. We hope that we have their messages straight.
To get the messages straight was by no means a simple task and if

in some areas of this report there appears to be conflict, it does not mean

that the inquiry members could not make up their minds but simply that a great

divergence of opinion exists among the citizens of this City on the subject.

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:
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Further, terminology became a problem in some of the submissions
and in some instances it was difficult to tell whethe; the respondent was
referring to elementary or secondary schéol students, This was particularly
difficult to determine in the area of freedom versus discipline and in
the amount cf student involvement in setting school policies. Indeed,
the word discipline itself caused the inquiry members some anxious
thoughts; for ;ome respondents discipline appeared to be a trip to the
woodshed while for others it meant the capability to deal properly with

difficult academic exercises.

Another point that must be noted is that reference to percent-

Y

ages in the public attitude study must be considered approximate, in the
sense that they are statistically reliable but not exact,

\ It must also be noted that some of the more extreme views
expressed have not found Eheif way into this report because they appear
not to have caught the interest of even a significant minority.

The report which follows ;; comprised of two major sections.
The one immediately following named "Findings" is a summary of attitudes
expressed by the public on a wide variety of topics related to Saskatoon
schools, These findings are presented largely without comment or opinion.
The final section is labelled "Observations and Recommendations'.

Implicit in our choice of recommendations is our assessment of the

Findings.
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A, ENDS AND :MEANS
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A. ENDS AND MEANS

OBJECTIVES IN EDUCATION

Throughout the proceedings of the inquiry a considerable amount
of public interest was focused on the educational aims and objectives of
Saskatoon schools, both in the written submissions received by the
Committee and in the discussions at public hearings. A further indication
of citizen viewpoint in this matter was apparent in the results of the
public attitude survey.

Although not directly stressed in all contributions, there was a
stated view by some and an inference by many others, that school programs
should be equally available for all children and youth of this City, with
equally suitable educational facilities and staff. There should be equal
educational opportunity regardless of residence, race, or religion, and
without restrictions imposed on the basis of any physical handicap or
emotional or léagging disability.

One Home and School said:

We believe that equal educational opportunity should

be provided all children in the city, regardless of where

they live or what their economic circumstances.

This would mean that -

- all school buildings and facilities should come to

a certain minimum standard;

- resource centres and gymnasiums should be provided

all schools; )

- equally qualified teachers and administrators
- should be found in all schools,

Frequent reference 'was made to the idea that the school should
have as its primary cbjective the development of the individual student
to the maximum of his or her jotential. It was made abundantly clear
that contributors thought in terms of the development of the capacities

of the individual student.

Oné respondent put it this way:
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Education is the encouragewent of the fullest possible
development of all the skills latent in an individual and
the encouragement of optimal funcivon within society.
The potential that contributors would expect schools to develop

lay in three broad areas: o,

1. The development of skills and knowledge:

Emphasis was placed on the idea that the school program should
enable the individual student to develop ge..eral competence in communi-
cation skills and mathematics. It was felt that students not only should,
but must, learn hov to communicate their thoughts both orally and in
writing, and that in addition, they shoula understand the basic mathe-
matical concepts and practices.

Next, emphasis was placed by contributors on the development of
a wide range of other skills and knowledge. The school program should be
broad in confent and should encompass a wide variety of sgbiect matter.
Sueh a program should aim to develop all areas of student ability and
should enable a student to cope with a rapidly changing society.

2. Development of a motivation to learn and an intellectual
strategy: T

The school program, it was felt, should encourage in the student
a motivation or eagerness to learn. Moreover, it should encourage the
student to develop an inquiring mind and a capacity for both creative and
critical thought. It should teach the:gtudent to learn for himself.

3. The development of social ané/or moral attitudes:

Studen;s should develop an understanding of other people,
and should learn to respect and value their persons and opinions;
they should develop a sense of responsibility for their society.

(Contributors would not suggest, we feel, that schools alone are

responsible for the development of these attitudes in students but
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would suggest that schools play au iwportant role in supporting and
accommodating the values learned by the student in his home and in
society.)

A few respondents attempted a summary of the objectives of
education. As might be imagined there was considerable divergence, -One

of the submissions which seemed to characterize the common opinion was

as follows:

The objectives of education should be to:

a) teach the student how to teach himself.

b) téach :the student how to adcpt to our rapidly
changing world. s

¢) teach communications - how to relate to each other
and the rest of the world.

d) teach the student self-discipline through
responsibility.

e) teach students to work to the best of their ability
and to produce a standard of workmanship in which-
they can have pride.

f) teach respect for all types of work.

g) teach respect for all our fellowmen.

h) teach all these things and still preserve -
individuality as an end result.

and a second submission which also attempted a summary:

The primary objective of education should be to
develop the student to the maximum of his or her potential:
- by providing him with the skills necessary to express
himself in written and oral form.

- by creating in him a sense of individual responsibility.

- by encouraging an inquiring mind and the capacity for
critical thinking.

- by enabling him to continue his education beyond the
elementary and secondary level.

- by preparing him as well as possible for the kind of
employment he is likely to find.

- by introducing him to the kind of cultural and athletic
activities which will make his leisure time more
fulfilling and rewarding.

ALTERNATIVES WITHIN THE SYSTEM

For the majority of parents and students, there would be satis-
faction if the schools simply did well what they are presently doing.
But to satisfy a significant minority, without catering to

extreme positions, certain alterhatives should be available. It was felt
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that choice benefits and .frees everybody. One mother said:

I realize that msny people may not agree with my
ideas concerning the objectives of schooling, For
this reason 1 strongly plea' for the establishment of
alternatives within the public school system.
Parents and children should be given a choice of schools
and of teachers with different approaches to teaching,
anywhere in the city. This would greatly increase the
teachers' freedom too, as they could develop their own
teaching styles with the full support and co-operation

of their principal and the parents yho elected to send
their children to them.

1t was suggested as a principle that the school should be
fitted to the child and not vice-versa. Some parents felt that emphasis
on standardization might "easily degenerate into a rigid refusal to
acknowledge that children's capacities differ." It was further felt that
the obviéﬁs solution to unequal aptitudes "is to allow s*-udents to proceed

at more or less individual rates.'' .

What kind of alternatives are Being sought? This report will
make suggestions for alternatives in such areas as discipline, teaching

methods, curriculum, school attendance, evaluation methods, open boundaries,

education facilities, differentiated staffing.

How can these alternatives be handled practically by those who
have responsibility? Suggested means included:

(a) Develop schools with distinct profiles,-made available
through a liberal open boundaries policy. A submission from a family spoke
in this vein, expressing their thoughts as follows:

Finally, some of ‘these objectives might be attainable
for those parents and students who want them if the school
boundaries were erased and the consumers of education were
allowed to select the school with the approach they desired,
1f this were done, school staffs should be encouraged to
develop distinct approaches to the educational process,

Some of these suggestions would also involve increased
personnel; it is encouraging to see schools attempting to
involve parents in both the decisions as to what schools
should be achieving and in volunteer work to help attain

these objectives. Such efforts at parental involvement
should be encouraged,

e oot~ iy o i S o e i A o+ e g n s
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- This principle of being able to select alternative schools

o
“within the system received considerable support. One home and school

expressed it simply: "If a child is not receiving the kind of education
L NN .
he™®%onsiders desirable in the school nearest him he should be allowed to
k ) attend any other school in the system.” This same association suggested
\ that schools develop specialized programs so that they are known for their
:
f differences rather than their similarities.
- . One particular suggestion for & special school was expressed in
™ this way:
Eaid -
B - I would like to see one of the high schools being run
on an experimental basis in a way rather different from
3 -< the other schools. One of the small collegiates could be
used for this purpose, and students would have the option
- of attending this school or one of the conventional ones.
In such a school, the students and teachers would have
certain freedoms which do not exist in most schools today.
e The school would be set up simply as a centre to facili-~
tate learning. Teachers. would function as resource people.
There would be sufficient flexibility in programmes to
- permit each student to pursue things which interest him. —
. el - -« There would be some freedom to attend class or not, and to
i plan - with guidance - how one schedules one's time. There
- : . would obviously te rules of conduct, as are necessary
whenever large groups of people come together, but such
e rules would exist for a valid reason and would not be
i arbitrarily imposed by the administration. A willingness
to adhere to such necessary rules and to be prepared to .
- handle a gradually increasingly large part of the responsi-
B bility for one's own learning would be expected of all the
T students. I am prepared to bet that there are in
Saskatoon enough kids to populate a small high school who
would be prepared to learn this kind of responsibility and
who would be far happier than they are in our present
schools. Saskatoon has in the past had a reputation for
doing creative things to help meet the educational needs of
its children, and this sort of step would seem to be what
oo & the situation which confronts us calls for.
A separate submission suggested that as part of an experimental
high school, students might well profit from modified correspondence
courses which could serve "to increase the independence of the pupils in
the direction and conduct of their own learning."
< 1
- 4 TF 1
Q TN
ERIC” - - i
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It was suggested that in the high school systems, it is feasible
for students to register for courses in more than one school, so that their
personal program requirements may be met.

(b) Develop special rooms in the present school systems,
particularly in the elementary areas, where interested parents can share
in the education of their children by greater participation., Considerable
interest was shown in a local Open sé¢hool, and its method of operation.

It seemed to be based upon "a much stronger relationship between the family
and the school™, and on an "active partnership approach." This was seen
as an approé;h hayjpg possibilities within the existing school systems.

(c) Develop a more refined system of "contract" teaching in
regular high schools. The cog;racts should be entered into freely and
carried out responsibly; in such a program, credit is based on progress rather
than attendance,

(d) Experiment to obtain greater flexibility in time scheduling.
Public opinion ran very much in favor of the semester system. Some parents
questioned the rationale behind a necessary attendance of 200 days. Some
asked why the school year is determined on a September to June basis. An
opinion was expressed that schooling be on a year rouhd basis., Others
asked why the daily time schedule is fixed at 8:30 to 3:30. They seemed
to be willing to examine alternatives. Most, however, would leave the
school year as it is with the holidays retained in the summer period,

The rigidity of the present system was expressed by one student
who said:

When the bell rings - even if a crucial set of measurements
in assigned experiments is in process - the students,
conditioned as well as Pavlov's dogs, pack up their books
and shift both mentally and physically to a new class.

Another student asked that students be allowed to work independently with

an overseeing teacher. She too saw this as permitting longer experiments
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in science and a possible enabling of immersion in language.

VIEWING THE SYSTEM

While most contributors to the inquiry pointed out particular
aspects of the educational system which they wished to praise or blame,

a few attempted to give over-all impressions. On the whole, generali-
zations regarding elementary schools were complimentary.

Those groups who took surveys of their memberships came up with
praise. They found clear majorities who were happy with the present
genettal state of things.

Some who made personal assessments were less favourable to the
system. Some stated there was little room for self-discipline and self-
exploration; one remarked that creativity and spontaneity were ''steam-
rolled" out of the child. They corporately identified a problem in the
emphasis on competition and on passing and failing. One group said,
"Finding winners is not what our schools should be all about. We have a
right to expect them tc develop healthy human personalities.” Another
individual commented that students experience fear: 'the fear of being
wrong, stupid, fear of expressing one's own ideas and feelings."

There were a small number of respondents who blamed the schools
for failing to teach the children moral values, and laid responsibility
for the present state of the world at the feet of those accountable for

our schools.
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RESULTS FROM THE PUBLIC ATTITUDE SURVEY - ENDS AND MEANS

"In school the emphasis must bte in teaching students how to learn.”
90% agree
"You get the same standard of education no matter what school you go to."
36% agree ‘
"I'd keep the schools running just as they are if 1 had my way."
39% agree
"Parénts should be able to send children to any school they want."
727 agree

"I would like (my child) to go to a school set up to experiment with
new teaching methods."

73% agree

"There's no reason why the schools should close for the summer."
387 agree

"Students need the summer for a rest from school."
83% agree

"The schools are preparing the students well for life after they
leave school."

52% agree

"The school system is better than it was twenty-five years ago."
917 agree

"Saskatoon has a very good school system."

817, agree
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SUMMARY - ENDS AND MEANS

l. 1In Saskatoon there is a consensus on the general
objectives of education. Citizens believe that the school program
should have as its aim and objective the development of the
individual student to the maximum of his or her potential. This
will be achieved through the development of:

(a) communicative skills - oral and written communicative
skills, and mathematical concepts and practices;

(b) a wide range of interests and agalities - to suit
the student in order to cope with the changing
society. The education of the '"whole" child,

(c) a motivation to learn;

(d) an ability to learn for himself, and to think
critically and creatively;

(e) moral and/or social values in support of the
values taught in the home and in society,

2. Every student should have equal educational opportunities
regardless of his residence, race or religion and without restriction
on the basis of any physical handicap or emotional or learning
disability,

3. There is general satisfaction with the elementary school
system; satisfaction with secondary schools is less general.

4, A significant minority are seeking alternatives within
the school system. Many of these alternatives become possible only
with the removal of school boundaries.

5. There is a strong feeling in favour of school vacation

periods during the summer,
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B. PROGRAM AND CURRICULUM

Judgirg from the contributions made to the Citizens' School
Inquiry, it seems that most Saskatcon citizens accept the traditional
division of curriculum into éubject areas, However. they would make some
changes in subject offerings, mainly as follows:

(1) the strengthening of some courses and programs now

offered (such as Language Arts, Mathematics, French,
Fine Arts, Physical Education);

(2) the availability for all of adequate Family Life
Education, Canadian Studies, Education for Leisure;

(3) the addition of more full-credit and mini-length
optional courses at the secondary level (such as world
religions, psychology, sociology, ecology, anthropology,
philosophy, economics, political science; industrual
arts and crafts);

(4) the removal of a seven-subject minimum requirement in

high school.
No one change, of course, would be agreeable to all.

Not surprising in an increasingly mobile society., a strong call
was heard for the standardization of curricula from coast-to-coast in
Canada. This need was felt especially in Mathematics, English Grammar,
and the compulsory subjects. Some felt that such standardization was
lacking even within Saskatchewan, and one person complained that in
Saskatoon, rooms of the same grade in the same school seemed to have
different programs and schedules,

A far larger number of contributors, however, opposed standardi-
zation and called specifically for greater individualization of program

and rate of progress to accommodate individual differences in students.
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They would tailor the program to fit the student, rather than require the

student to adjust to a rigid school program.

BASIC SKILLS (3R's)

The largest number of submissions on any topic whatever were
those concerning the importance of the basic skills of language arts
(reading, writing and speaking English) and mathematics., These briefs,
which included a number from home and school associations, recommended
that highest priority be attached to these areas, particularly .at the
elementary level.

Many people noted that high school graduates are frequently
deficient in spoken and written English and in basic mathematical skills.
A professor who called for more school time spent on basic skills said
this of his students at the university: 'Rather severe difficulty in
reading, spelling and composition is so common as to be normal." One
community group, concerned about the inability of many high school grad-
uates to "write a simple sentence . . . (and) carry out basic arithmetical
computations", blamed an overloaded school curriculum for the problem:

Because it has tended to take on more and more of

the responsibilities of the home, the church, and the

community, the school is probably not doing as good a

job as it should in those areas for which it was

created--namely to provide instruction in the three

R¥s, . . . Without these basic tools, students are at

a definite disadvantage, no matter what they may be

doing after graduation,

One parent suggested that a major cause of deficiencies of graduates in
spoken and written English may be because English 'is taught in isolation",
instead of being taught as an "inter-disciplinary skill", emphasized by

the science teacher, the physical education teacher, the mathematics teacher,

the social studies teacher, as well as the language arts teacher. Another

suggestion was that English or language arts teachers need more time:
time "to drill the rules of grammar, , . . to mark the exercises these

drills require, and ., . . to dwell on creativity". Paid teacher assistants
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or parents with undergraduate degrees in English or speech would be of
great help in lightening the load of high school English teachers, said
one citizen.  Several other contributors called for more remedial reading
teachers and speech therapists.

A few parents expressed '"doubts' about the teaching and value
of "new math". Complaints were that compared with "old math", new math
is more "difficult and confusing for students to learn, for teachers to
teach and for parents to understand."

Only one contributor stated that there was too mggh emphasis
on books and reading in our schools, and that such emphasis induces
anxiety in poor readers. He recommended that *learning experiences in the
schools should be based on as wide an input of sensory experience as
possible and the output measured by as many methods as possible, tather
than relying entirely on writing and reading."

FINE ARTS

While a number of contributors beljeve tkat basic skills should
get more attention, even if it means giving less attention to fine arts,
physical education, sciences or counselling, others believe that schools
should not be "“narrowly academic", but should provide for "a wide range
of cultural and social interests.' There was considerable interest shown

by individuals, home and school groups, and art and music teachers in an

-expansion of fine arts offerings in schools. A professor of music put the

case for fine arts this way:

Any respecCtavie view of man must recognize his
physical, intellectual, and spiritual nature and the
school curriculum must reflect this. Ample exposure
to physical culture, to intellgctual discipline,. and
to the spiritual/esthetic values of art, music and
drama should be provided for each student in every
grade , . .

The absence [in Saskatooﬁ] of theatres and specially
designed and equipped art and music rooms suggests that
we do not yet understand the importance of chese kinds
of experiences , . . .
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Several students noted a lack of fine arts facilities and
teachers. "Public school students are very seldon: lucky enough to have
a qualified art teacher", observed one, "but a solid background in art
is a basic requirement for many professions such as interior decorating,
architecture, and fashion designing." Other students claimed that art
and music "are practically ignored" and "classes in 7- *ma and wmusic are
especially lacking."

One brief included suggestions for improving and expanding the
elementary and secondary school art programs. ''Each elementary school
should have a qualified art teacher halftime . . . and a room set aside
specifically for art," it stated. And at the secondary level, consider- !
ation should be given to "centralizing all art education in one or two
centres which are easily accessible by bus.'" 'Such an arrangement, it is
claimed, would mean that "equipment could be usad by more people and
teachers could specialize to some degree."

An art teachers' organization recommended that every child should
take art for the first eight years of schuol, and called for qualified art
teachers in each school, special art rooms, increased instruction time,
and resider. artists in association with the school system.

A brief from school music teachers pointed out that ''thex¢ are
no rooms in the entire school system which have been designed for the
purpose of music instruction', and "forty-four percent of‘the elementary
schools do not have instrumental music programs.'" They recommended ''more
qualified personnel' in both the elementary schools and collegiates,

"more equipment", and "better facilities", A spokesman for the group
stated that ™music should be compulsory in the elementary school ., . . up
to some place in the division three level," Sevesral individuals at public

meetings agreed that music should be offered as part of the regular

curriculum.,
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FRENCH INSTRUCTION

We received a signiricant number of submissions supporting
French instruction. We were told that in 1967 the Department of
Education introduced a six-year French program to begin in Division III
(year seven) cnd that the "Saskatoon public school system is the only
major school system in Saskatchewan which has not fully implemented the 1
Division I1I French program.” At present, they said, "seventy-five percent
of the grade seven and eight students in Saskatoon's public schoo.s" do
not get French instruction at school. However, it ishnoted that the
Saskatoon separate school board introduced French in all grade four
classrooms in 1964, and in 1967 they implemented the Department of
Education Division TI1 Frenchk program,

The French Teachers' Association recommended the following to

the public school system: that the Department of Education French program

be implemented beginning in grade seven in all elementary schocls; that

a full-time co-ordinator of French for Divisions I1I1 and 1V be employed;
that daily twenty-five to fhirty minute periods be allocated to the study
of French in grades seven and eight; that class size be limited to twenty
students; that teachers hired to teach French be qualified to teach French.
The latter three recommendations were also directed to the separate school
system. Several groups, including home and school &ssociations, supported
the brief .f the French teachers, and urged that French be taught to
students at as early an age as possible.
One brief recommended that "instruction of Ukrainian during
school hours, and beginning no later than Year IV". be introduced

immediately in those "various school districts or areas" where the demand

arises.
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CANADLAN STUDIES

sized much more. One parent asked that Canadian studies be "given
priority on curricula throughout all 12 grades'. She explained:
The older children [her own] are hazy about their

country's history, ge~graphy, legal system, and structures

of government. It is small wonder that few local residents

attend board and aldermanic meetingss—vote in local

elections, or attempt to manipulate government or press

for change; they probably don't know how to go about it.
Several groups recommended class trips to historical sites, comparative
studies on political parties, s.udies of basic laws and legal rights of
the individual in our society, and compulsory classes in Canadian social

studies, with instruction by Canadians from books written by Canadians,

FAMILY LIFE EDUCATION, HOME LIVING AND HEALTH EDUCATION

About a dozen briefs, including some from groups, stated the need
for family 1ife education, to be taught in both elementary and secondary
schools. Child care should be an integral part of this education,
according to a brief from a women's association. One brief, supported by
others, claimed that iA the years before grade eight there should be
"complete coverage of fundamental sex education; including sexual anatomy
and physiology, contraception, venereal disease and feelings towards members
of the opposite sex." Others recommended that at some stage in basic
education, both boys and girls should have instructior in such things as
household budgeting, home management, maintenance and‘repair, consumer
buying and credit, car-care, elementary first aid and lifesaving.

Saveral people at public meetings stated that there is not enough
emphasis placed on health education in our schools, on knowledge about the
human body and how to care for it. Education beginning in early grades,
about proper nutrition and exercise, and about drug abuse were seen as

important.
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EDUCATION FOR LEISURE

Several contributors suggested that in the future, education must
be geared more toward preparation for leisure and less toward preparation
for jobs, since with a shorter work week and early retirement there will
be more spare time.

A ccuple of home and school groups suggested that students from
the elementary years up need to be prepared for future leisure by learning
hobbies and crafts, engaging in nature study and camping outdoors, and
learning individual sports such as golf, tennis, swimming and bowling that

can be enjoyed throughout life. Another brief suggested guidelines for

leisure education. In future, they maintained, "the school will have to

drop its traditional policy of isolating leisure education on the island

of extracurricular activities and bring it into the mainland of the school

curriculum itself," And further, "education for leisure cannot be the

exclusive domain of any one segment or level of education.," Important
skills for ieisure, they suggested, should do the following:

- Aid body development, movement, and motor co-ordination,
usually expressed in physical activities such as games,
dance, and sports,

- Contribute to safety and survival, such as swimming
and driving a vehicle efficiently and carefully,

- Bring good literature into our lives ., ., .

- Make use of creative hands in shaping materials, such
as painting, sculpturing, tying flies . . .

- Bring appreciation and enjoyment of the outdoors . ., .

- Make it possible to create vocal and instrumental music,
or at least enjoy livtening to them.

- Allow us to express ourselves through drama.

- Enable us to learn the joy of being of service to others.

A fewcontributors were opposed to giving more school time to
leisure education. One parent suggested that training for the use of
leisure time should be *the job of Parks and Recreation, the Y, but not

of the schools: that the curriculum becdmeg overloaded when the school
assumes responsibility for every sort of child care and educational

experience,
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OPT1ONAL SUBJECTS &

About a dozen brief;, including a number from students,
suggested that more options should be offered at the high school level.
Courses recommended were psychology, sociology, ecology, anthropology,
philosophy, comparative studies on world religions, economics, political

science. 1t was argued-that university is too late to begin these

subjects, since those students nof going beyond grade twelve should have
at least the opportunity of ah introduction to them, One youth group
asked that more students‘ﬁrom the regplar high schools be able to take
the specialized shop programs, such as metal work, automotives and elec-
tronics, which are offered at the comprehensive collegiates.

Several brief; discussed the vocational and industrial arts
programs. 1t was claimed that. high school should provide a broad general
education, including offerings in industrial arts as well as in academic
subjects, but that it should not provide specific vocationai preparation.

%

Functioné of industrial arts courses in high schools were outlined as

follows: >

(1) to familiarize students with vocational opportunities,
problems and practices;

(2) to give those students intending to pursue a high level
technical course at a post-secondary institute an
adequate grounding in math and science;

(3) to provide preparation for a hobby for leisure time.

A teacher of industrial arts recommended that 'there be established a

central core of s;bject matter for indﬁstrial arts and that teachers be

required to follow the established curriculum,

There was considerable opposition to the reduction by the

Provincial Department of Education on minimum requirements in Division
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Fourgﬁrom eight to seven subjects. One High School Staff expressed the

opinion that "reduction in . . . credit requirements . . , has encouraged

-
&

student indifference toward wider and in-depth exploration of available

courses." Another group of teachers suggested that "the Department [haé]

N

put some financial pressure on Boards to reduce the number of courses

each §tudent can take."

¢ Reflecting the theme that since we usually have only one chance

aqﬁfvfmal education, it should be the fullest education possible, a high

school home and school association put its argument this way:
R _  Since subjects are only a means of gaining
lpducationaf] objectives . . . , let any number
: be taught that helps reach these _onals. However,
in our present educational structure, the majority of
[our] parents felt a minimum of seven subjects was
unrealistic, and that there should be no maximum
-5 nurmber set.

DRIVER EDUCATION

"2; €  We did not receive e large number of submissions about driver
edd;ation, but most of those who did comment spoke favourably. One youth
wrote, '"We heartily approve the Driver Education Program as a meaningful
part of education in our modern world and we hope that nothing will be
L
done to- cut back or remove this program." A father, three of whose
children had taken the program, wrote this:
. I am happy with the attitude that my children have
taken toward the responsibilities associated with
driving a car and would hope that . . . this good
" program be . . . continued and strengthened in our
3 High Schools.
~. A brief from the Driver Education Staff of the Public Board of
Education recommended changes in the Driver Education program: that it
be' made a credit course in the regular school curriculum instead of being
extracurricular; that it be conducted during school hours; that the class-

-

room theory be extended to 30 hours from 24; that there be no fee; and
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that it be part of a kindevgarten-to-Grade-12 safety program, made
possible by the Department of Education on a province-wide basis.

A couple of briefs questioned whether Driver Education should
be a school responsibility, since it is expensive and perhaps prevents

the offering of courses "more meaningful to general education.

PHYSICAL EDUCATION

A lot of interest was shown by many contributors about

physical education and sports. There was @ variety of opinion, but most

of these briefs called for an expanded physical education program in

elementary and secondary schools, with less emphasis on competition and
inter-school team sports and more emphasis on general participation and
individual “carry-over" sports (such as curling, badminton, tennis,
swimming, golf, bowling, skiing). A few contributors stated that there
is already too much emphasis on sports, at the expense of either basic
subjects or of music and art.

It was felt that the physical education program at the elemen-
tary level is not well developed and lacks qualified staff. Referring to
the elementary system, a teacher at a public meeting stated this:

I think we have a very poor physical education set-up

in the elementary schools., And we have very few people

who are qualified to teach physical education in the

elementary schools, And certainly this is one of the

places it must start,

One elementary home and school brief recommended that a good physical
education program be available in all Saskatoon schools, with instruction
by qualified physical education teachers, and that this program encourage
all children, girls as much as boys, to develop their physical skills,
but "without the pressure of competition always present' as it is in the

presently organized team sports. Another home and school recommended

"daily Physical Education activity for all students."




-25-

At the high school level it was felt that competitive inter-

school team sports for the talented few received too much time and
attention and that instead money should be spent primarily on programs
that benefit all students. A student at a public meeting earned a round
of applause when he stated that he would rather participate in sport
"for the enjoyment of it, rather than the competitive spirit of it."
Another student commented this way:

The athletic program is now focused on the superstar
who plays on teams, instead of emphasizing participation
for all for fun and fitness . . . A well-run intramural
program which caters to the person of average physical
ability is extremely important.

One brief, however, noted this problem:

There is evidence of .declining interest in the
traditional program of interhouse competition . . .

The privilege to leave school early in the day seems

to be a factor undermining the participation in
intramural activities.

Several briefs suggested dissolution of inter-collegiate team

sports. A group of educators queried:
Is the cost of and the effort required by some

ma jor inter-collegiate sports a necessary part of

the public school system? (The Schools have quietly

given up hockey--what of organizing football outside

of the school system?)
A parent suggested that "football and heavy concentration on inter-
school contests . . . encourages a whole generation of spectators."
A medical doctor, and parent of elementary school children, wrote
"The physical education programme is completely ineffectual as_a means of

promoting improved student physique but it is very expensive in capital

and operating costs."
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EDUCATION FOR SPECIAL NEEDS

a) The Academically Talented or Gifted

Many citizens addressed themselves to the topic of the
academically talented; most were in favor of the special classes now
offered for gifted children and would like to see an expansion of the
program in availability and content. Several students who had been part
of this program said it was '"challenging", "interesting" and "enjoyable"
and should be extended into the high schools. One parent who supported
these special classes remarked as follows about gifted students:

These are the neglected children in regular class-

rooms if there are too many students for one teacher.

The gifted easily become bored, lazy, underachieving.

In special classes, far from becoming ‘intellectual

snobs', they become quite humble kids because for once

they're being pittad against their peers or better.

A brief from an organization of social workers, who recommended the

program, suggested that there be financial help {mainly busfare) for

families that cannot afford to send their academically-talented children

“to the school providing this program. They also suggested that volunteers
be used to help with the program in order to minimize costs.
A community group critical of the program argued this:

[T]he segregation of any group of students is
antithetical to the prevailing educational philosophy
that exceptionel children have more in common with
other students than they have differences and there-
fore they should be kept with other children rather
than being set apart.

b) The Handicapped (Emotionally, Socially, Mentally)

Many more citizens addressed themselves to the needs of the
child with emotional and learning disabilities than to the gifted,
suggesting that more attention must be given to helping the handicapped
fulfill their potential and ‘to function as vesponsible, independent

members of society. It was brought to our attention that the "incidence
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of children whose needs are different

enough in one or more areas of

exceptionality a€é to need special educational services is estimated at

between eight percent and sixteen percent of the school population.”

Several briefs endorsed the
integrating exceptional children into
programs to the extent possible. One

gration, they suggested, would be for

adoption of the principle of
the regular school classes and
means to facilitate this inte-

every teacher to have at least

introductory courses in the education of exceptional children. Further,
"personnel with specific higher-level skills in corrective and remedial
1 work are required! to provide assistance to regular class teachers and to
students needing special help. A lower pupil/teacher ratio was also
seen as important. Another suggestion was that the Department of Special
Education in the school system "use the full-time assistance of child
psychiatrists and clinical psychologists,"

It was claimed that at present the services for children with
a "marked degree of emotional disturbance", who require special classes,
i¢ nowhere near adequate. Several noted, too, that the classes for the
mentally handicapped need more trained personnel, such as speeca
therapists. One parent wrote that teachers in the classes for the
educable mentally handicapped" lack "knowledge, training and time to
sufficiently deal with all the class members and all their problems."

Several briefs pointed out a great need for provision of
services for early identification, before age six, of emotional and
behavioral problems and learning disabilities. Early identification and
adequate follow-up services can be a preventive measure "which could lead
to reduction in expenditure of special classes, remedial assistance,

counselling and eventually social welfare payments", one group stated.

1t was recommended that priority be given to children with special learning

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

E l(j needs in-establishment of pre-school programs,
!
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Referring to the secondary level, one brief stated that it is
“virtually impossible" to provide the '"necessary diversity within the
context of the traditional framework of secondary schoul' to meet the
needs of exceptional adolescents, and that therefore, special arrange-
ments need to be made. For one thing, "use of tutorial and guided study
programmes for meeting extraordinary needs" should be explored. Secondly,
‘closer co-operation and communication between the schocls and community
agencies providing social work is recommended.

Several contributors commended the Radius Tutoring Project as
an alternative to the regular high school program for those who drop out
or are unable zo cope with mainstream education. This program of studies,
financed by the Department of Welfare, operates during the regular school
year in. private dwellings i.. Saskatoon. The students, ranging in age
from pre-teen to middle age, take courses by correspondence, guided bv
teachers and tutors trained in "Reality Therapy". The project uses
reality therapy to effect behavioral changes; focus of attention is
"consistently placed upon the present and the immediate future, for to
lock back means, in most cases, only to recall failure." ™he long-term
goal is return to the regular school system.

Several contributors pointed out a need for more pre-employment
work-study programmes in thg school, linked with local *.ndustries. One
collegiate staff also recommended that there be "more training programs
available that do not require grade 11 or 12 for admission." Another
group of high school teachers proposed the establishment of an "Employ-
ment Council' (to include representatives from'industry, the professions,
civic government, labour unions, teachers, students and parents), whose

main role would be to provide opportunities for "education outside the
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formal school system", in the form of "education on the job*, for those
students (beyond grade 10) who are unmotivated at school or are
"incapable of ‘earning beyond a specific level." It was suggested that
local and provincial tax money that is now being used to keep these young

people in school should be directed to helping them learn outside school,
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RESULTS FROM THE PUBLIC ATTITUDE SURVEY - PROGRAM AND CURRICULUM

"The elementary (Grades 1 to 8) school curriculum has not kept up
with the times.,"

437, agree

"There's not enough emphasis placed on teaching the three R's in
elementary school' (Grades 1 to 8)

527 agree

"There should be more emphasis on Canadian things and people in
history, literature, etc."

857% agree
"High school students should be able to study subjects they're
interested in, even though these subjects are not in the
curriculum."
807 agree
"Religion should be part of the school curriculum."
387 agree
"There's little point in learning French in Saskatoon schools."
337 agree
"There's not enough attention paid to sports."

387 agree

"Students who don't make the team in sports are made to feel
failures."

377 agree

"It would be better if a high school student learning a trade were
out working as an apprentice at least part of the school year."

807 agree

"Instead of teaching trades in the classroom there should be an ) ,
apprentice system."

597 agree
"Students not in the academic stream are looked upon as inferior."

617, agree
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"The school system is not geared to cope with the slow lesrner."

65% agree
"The gifted child gets a raw deal."

37% agree
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SUMMARY - PROGRAM AND CURRICULUM

1. Saskatonians expect elementary and secondary schools to
do a competent job of teaching the basic skills of spoken and written
Ennslish and mathematics. There is evidence that graduates are
deficient in these skills.

2. Many citizens consider good Fine Arts education,
especially art and music education, as important at both elementary
and secondary levels, A sizeable number, however, would put Fine
Arts secondary to thorough education in basic skills.

3. Most citizens con’ v French instruction important and
would like to see it available to all students, beginning at least

-

by year seven.

4, Most citizens consider increased emphasis on fanadian
content and studies important at both elementary and secondary levsls.

5. Most nitizens consider physical education important.
However, many would like the emphasis put on more general participation
in team sports, on fitness and on individual '"carry-over'" sports,
rather than on competitive inter-collegiate team sports.

6. A seven-subject minimum requirement in high schools is
considered inadequate.

7. Special education: Many believe that more attention
must be paid to those students requiring special educational services,
both the handicappéd and the gifted. The handicapped are considered
to be especially in need of early diagnoéis and services. As well,

more professional assistance in the handling of emotional and learning

problems within the school is .een as necessary,
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C. THE TEACHER.AND THE SCHOOL

TRAINING AND PERFORMANCE

Saskatoon citizens regard teachers as the key to quality
education. They expect them to perform with competence. The public
appear to conclude that the best assurance of the presence of competence
on the part of the individual will be through a combination of two
factors: firstly, academic training, preferably to the degree level;
secondly, an ability to relate well to the students as individuais.V

As to the matter of academic training the foilowing comments
were heard:

We believe that the school systems should strive
towards a policy of having all degree-holding
teachers in the system.

A Home and School Associacion, following a questionnaire to its

membership, said: i

Throughout all the comments, changes and complaints
listed on the questionnaire, the desire for high
academic and teaching standards was evident.

Coupled with the call for academic attainment was the suggestion
that highly qualified teachers should be sought for the early grades.
There seemed to be a feeling on the part of some that existing policy
pointed in the opposite direction. In this regard these comments were
heard:

Greater priority should be given to the lower grades
of 'school, since these are the years when the most
crucial learning takes place. This priority should be
reflected in such factors as the academic qualifications
of teachers . . .

This question of competency should be faced in the
present situation of education. Too often, inexperienced
or less competent teachers are placed in charge of primary
grades, mainly because they are inexperienced or less
competent. The rationale is that ‘it really doesn’t
matter', because they are dealing with the youngest children
in the school. The first three years of primary school, to
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my mind, "are the most important of all school years.
Here, the child develops work habits and is trained
| in the most basic skills. Here, the relationships
’ between teacher and pupil are established for a life-
r time. However, the concept of school prevalent in our
society, as a baby-sitfing service denies the impottance
| of such factors. *

} Referring to the call for a warm and communicative relationship
between the teacher and the individual student, citizens made the
following comments:

Youngsters should like to go to school, and should be
able to look forward with some pleasurable anticipation
to each day. This can best be accomplished by being sure
that youngsters go into classrooms staffed by teachers who
are mature, sincerely interested in young -people, and
willing to let them be individuals in a group situation.
Dollar inputs of teaching materials, audio-visual aids,
resource materials, etc., may give a sense of luxury to
the school situation, but may or may not contribute to
the quality of the educational experience. Hence, meeting
demands for these things should ~ome after the human
element has been provided in the form of understanding
teachers who are readily accessible.

I would much sooner have my youngsters taught by some-
one who likes them and shows it; who can let them be
individuals, and still get along with them, than by a
teacher. who had lots of academic training but no real
desire, or ability, to get close to them.

Teachers ought to like children. They should be able
to relate ~ll to children and understand their emotional
needs a.: vehavioral problems, Of course, teachers should
have a reasonable degree of knowledge and intelligence.
They must be able to adapt to changec and have an enthusi-
astic outlook toward learning. -

The feeling is present that while academic achievement is
attainable by those endowed with the requisite amount of brain power,
that alone should not entitle an applicant to enrolment in the College
of Education. Ability to attain academic degrees is separate from
suitability to teach. Thisfeeling has led to considerable comment
directed to us on the question of screening applicants for enrolment in

<

the College of Education for personal suitability to teaching.

LRIC
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Representative of a -number of briefs was the Home and School
Association which expressed the point as follows:

We feel that education is . . . charged with the

guidance of the people of the future. More critical

screening of those who would enter the teaching pro-

fession is needed. Academic standards alone should

not be the basis of admission.

Further, some comment was made about the inadequacy of the
academic preparation of teachers. The length and the content of the
course were questioned., The opinion was expresserl that a two year course
was too short and that not enough time was spent in‘studying the subject
matter to be taught. 1t was suggested that some of the courses of fered
in teaching training lacked intellectual depth and challenge.

Again, some contributors recommended that teachers be encouraged

to take in-service training to ensure that they keep up to date in new

methods and course content. By way of example, one brief recommended

classes to help teachers handle individualized instruction methods.

TENURE

The present tenure laws were brought into question by a signifi-
cant number of contributors. The spectrum of solutions ranged from minor
variations to outright abolition. The most frequently stated position
seemed to be that the principle of tenure should be preserved but that it
be modified as to both its initial attainment and its retention. The
following are some proposals that have been put to us in this regard:

1. From a teaching parent:

The Teacher Tenure Act is in need of revision or

if possible abandoned completely. A teacher can work hard,

téach well, impress the superintendent for two years and

then ‘'rest on' his laurels' for the rest of his teaching

life, knowing that he c~nput be released from his position
even if a better teacher could be found.

-

2. From a community Association:

ERIC
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In view of the fact that it is often difficult in two
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“s '  years to assess the long term competency of most
-~ teachors, tenure should be acquired after five years,
~ " and there should be a periodic review of the teacher's
performance after tenure has been acquired.

«« 3. From an individual:

It is considered that tenure should only be granted
. . after five years of teaching, and that it be for a five
~ year term after which the teacher's performance would be
reviewed before granting tenure for another five year
”» term.

-y 4, From a parent:

-—

It should be possible for school boards to dismiss
* incompetent and unsatisfactory teachers withoui out-
side interference. Poor performance is not tolerated
] - in most other areas of employment, and definitely
~  should not be tolerated in teachers dealing with our
children and young people in their formative years.

HMERIT PAY

By comparison to those who expressed themselves on tenure,
fewer citizens spoke out on the matter of merit pay. Some suggestions
were received, however, calling for implementation of payment on the

basis of merit. Individual submissions stated:

Teachers should be rewarded on their ability to teach,
their understanding of children and desire to impart their
knowledge - not on the number of degrees they've attained.

A good teacher, teaching each day to the fullest and
best of his ability is worthy of a good salary. But the
good teachers who are working hard are paid the same
salary as weak teachers who put in a very minimum effort.
‘1 feel that a teacher's salary should not be méasured by
degrees but by performance in the classroom. This per-
formance can be assessed by the principal, particularly
if he did the hiring, by examinations written by students
but set by an outside source--doing away with accreditation,
and by simply asking students to rate their teachers--
students in High School are not fooled by teachers who
are incompetent in their particular field.

ERIC
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The individual whose best contribution is obviously classroom
teaching must not feel compelled for economic reasons to attempt a move
into administration and accordingly, a recognition of his position is
warrcnted and perhaps that will come through a merit system. One contri-
butor expressed it in the following words:

Adequate recognition must be given to such teachers,
other than removing them from the classroom and placing
them in areas of administration. .

PRINCIPALS

The role of the principal was recognized as one of key importance,
It was felt that the utmost care and attention must be taken in the matter
of selection of principals. One citizen expressed the importance of the
school principalship in the following terms:

The principal holds a key position from which he/she
exerts much influence. For example, the acceptance and
introduction of (or thwarting of ) new ideas, curricula,
teaching methods, teaching aids, resource personnel and
improved facilities are dependent, in large measure,
upon the principal. An individual who is not well-placed
in an administrative position can become an obstacle to
the implementation and development of the professionally
researched, innovative, progressive programs and policies
of the School Board and central office. To ensure that
our students receive the kind of education which our very
able senior administrative staff publicly recommend and
support, it is necessary that our local school administrator
be held accountable for the learning environment of ‘'his
school’,

In this latter area sowe felt the principal should have a greater say in
the selection of teachers for his school. One parent expressed the point
as follows:

Principals are in a better position to choose their
own staff than are School Board officials. At present,
principals are stuck with a staff which was hired by
someone else. Why not put the principal in charge of his
school and then at least the tax-payer will know whom to
point the finger at if the teachers do not perform
according to expectations. Under the present heirarchy,
no one person seems to be in any position of authority.
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Elementary principals commented on their role in the educational
process as follows:

In an institution that must increasingly become more
sensitive and more capable of adjusting to change the
principal cannot afford to be a 'functionary' who is busy
with clerical and minor administrative routine, His new
role must become one of being truly the educational leader
in the school which requires establishing with the staff
and community educational goals for that school.

|
i

The authors of the same brief later quoted from the book. Frontiers in

School Leadership edited by Louis J. Rubin, to summarize their views:

Change will not eliminate the principal; it may well
liberate him. For change, if it is to come at all, will
come largely through his efforts, and unless he can be
freed from the bondage of many of his present management
tasks, he will not have the necessary energy to exercise.
his leadership.

From the foregoing it can be seen that selecting proper personnel
to fill the position of principal is crucial.

There must be a recognition that the outstanding classroom
teacher will not necessarily be able to perform well in an administrative
position. If a classroom teacher does make a move into a principalship or
other administrative position without commendable results, it is suggested
a mechanism must be present for his further move, presumably balck into the
classroom atmosphere. This latter point of view has been expressed to us
in the following manner:

The problem is a difficult one to settle to everyone's
satisfaction but it may be necessary for the school board

to have rhe right to re-assign principals to lesser

positions for which they are qualified, and from which they : -

will better serve our students, Perhaps the real problem

to be faced is to maintain security of position and tenure,

while insisting that the positinn of principal be filled by
competent administrators.
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1LLASON BETWEEN ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY SCHOOL TEACHERS

A strong need for closer communications between teachers in the
¢lementary and senior schools was indicated by several writers. One
student commented:

The high school teachers seldom know what you were
taught in grades one to seven, and 1 know from personal
experience that grade eight courses are often repeated
1n grade nine (especially composition, algebra and
french) This shows very poor organization of the
educational system,

A group of educators admitted that presently, elementary-
secondary schooi co-ordination was less than perfect saying 'there is a
failure to articulate, practice and program as well as it could be done."

One group asked for justification of the present organization

of our schools:

The Division System in Saskatchewan is based on a
6-3-3 pattern, while the public schools in Saskatoon
have a 8-4 pattern and the separate school a 7-5
arrangement, Since curriculum design is based on the
provincial division system, a school district whose
organization of schools does not approximate the
division system has greater difficulty providing the
programs which the system recommends.

TEACHING METHODS

Teaching methods employed in the classroom have come in for
considerable attention in our study. Of those who communicated with us,
parents with children in school have had the most to say to us in this
regard. In no sense have parents spoken to us with a unanimous voice.
We have heard sufficient, however, to appreciate that ~ome changes
adopted over recent years have not been totally understood‘or accapted,

perhaps because the reasons rfor their introduction have not been made

clear to the public,
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It may be that this is what has prompted one parent to ask:

Could it be that teaching methods are wrong? A major
obsession in all levels of education is that 'new' neces-
sarily means 'better'. We are obsessed by the necessity
to change, apparently as often as possible, regardless of
whether change is for the better or mnot. New ideas should
be encouraged but should not be introduced until they are
shown to be demonstrably better than the old.ones. The
only justification for introducing a new techaique should
be that it helps educate a person more efiectively and/or
to a higher degree.

Typical criticism of the teaching methods of some teachers has
been expressed in the following quotes by two separate citizens, the first
a student and the second a parent:

Everyone is aware of problem students and what can be
done about them but not much mention is made of 'problem
teachers' such as teachers who can stand in front of a
class for sixty minutes every day of the year without any
discussion by the students. As a result of this con-
ditioning, classes that should or do encourage discussion,
suffer. Students soon become apathetic to everything that
takes place in the class. . . . Some teachers tend to look
down on students and put little value on their opinions.

In some classes where on occasion the student is given the
chance to express opinions they are cut down by the teachers.
This too stifles involvement.

Perhaps what worries me most is the teaching of language
and social studies by requiring children to fill in words in
blank spaces, day after day, after day. My own Grade 11 son
is now in book I1 of his language work book series on page
139. His learning has taken through each page in turn. Not
once to my knowledge has there been a digression. Has the
perfect book been discovered? . . .

I am not suggesting that work books have no place; they
have, but only as an aid to learning. All children should
be encouraged to write creatively the moment they are
capable of putting two words together. 1 would like to see
more enterprise and originality in schools. A quiet class-
room is not always a good classroom.

To turn to specifics we were addressed a number of times on the
question of the "open area" concept. The comment was overwhelmingly in
opposition to this method of instruction. 1In most instances the reasons

for the expressed opposition were carefully documented 3id included such

comments as:

ERIC
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- They "are noisy and hard for young children to concentrate in".
y y young
- This "is getting further away from individual attention."
- They "are a distraction for students who are 'distraction prone’",

- My son is '"upset with the noise . . . has wasted a lot of his time."

- Such "less structured systems are apparently leading to a decrease in
accountability of the teaching profession to those whom they serve."

"I feel they are noisy, distracting and encourage the children to become
lazy and daydreamers.™

D A

The only positive response came from a community association which
recommended the open-area system through di;isions 1 and 2.

A spokesman at one of our public meetings from'a home and school
association, :n listing reasodns against the open-area system prefaced. his
femarks by saying "we feel that the large open-areas being built into our
new schools, don't seem to be producing better quality education for our
children."

When discussing teaching methods several contributors suggested
that better use could be made of community resources. Opinions in this area
indicated that while a few would make the entire community the school, most
would accept field trips into the surrounding community as being sufficient.
The former opinion wo&ld say that school should be held in any place
relevant to children, any physical building or location which enables the
child to learn and explore for himself.

There was a considerable call for out-of-doors education,
expressed in one submission in the following way:

Erhere should be] greater orientation towards out-of-

doors education, as far as our climatic conditions allow,

with emphasis on and implication of man's place in the

ecological system.

It was also suggested that students participate in the decision-making of
where they want to go on field trips and what they would like to explore.

ERIC
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One student mentioned an interesting course in Canadian law which
has been given at his high school by members of the legal society and
Judiciary in Saskatoon, pointing it up as having been an outstanding success
and an excellent example of the proper use of community resources. Several
submissions saw visits to City Council and the Provincial Legislature as
being ways of utilizing these resources.

A business group offered the "student dialogue program" as a way

. by which students are enabled to come in closer contact with the business

conimunity,

Comments made on the question of acceleration practices within -
the schools have, in the main, been of a negative nature. A Professor con-

sultant in the field of child and youth psychiatry has drawn on his

experience to say:

A further matter of concern is the vexed question of
acceleration or retardation. There seems to be little
to commend either technique since in both instances the
children are removed from their friends and from their
age peers. Neither really learns to get along with the
other and the stage is set for discrimination on an
intellectual basis., Many children have been seen who
have problems directly related to their failure and sub-
sequent removal to a lower grade. It would seem that the
most vulnerable time for this to occur is grade 1V and
the blow struck is one from which many children never
recover. Equally, the question of internal acceleration
breeds discontent, anxiety and fear in the transplanted
ones who have to try t catch up, not with the academic
achievements -of the older group, but with their physical
and emotional achievements, This is especially hard on
young girls moved up into a pubescent group.

Two proposals were received suggesting that an acceptable
alternative to acceleration would be an enrichment program for th. child.
These contributors said:

1. A common practice in the schools is acceleration.

Depriving children of time in school to develop and

learn is unfair to these exceptional children. Greater

emphasis on enrichment, including broader education -
than the skill subjects, could be of infinite value in

s+
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equipping a child for independent adulthood. The present
system merely individualizes to a limited degree the
rate of progress in the skill subjects.

2. Although some members of our family have been
- accelerated and have encountered no great problems
as a result. I would much prefer a stepped-up
enrichment program for those in need of further
challenge. Perhaps a school could suggest some
forms of enrichment which could be embarked upon
by the parents or by way of a co-operative effort
by parents and school, thus not dumping yet another
obligation solely on the school system,

Ty

Another contribution expressew. <he view that under a system of “continuous
progress' parents are not aware of acceleration taking place. This group
then recommends:

Because of problems which are often created with
respect to social maturity and the completion of high
school at an early age, we would advocate that overall
acceleration of the students' program only take place
with the full knowledge of the parents, so that they
are completely aware of the implications of such
acceleration.

We did receive a large number of submissions dealing with the
question of streaming of students into levels or areas where it is con-
sidered their talents best fit, One home and school association that spoke
out strongly in favour of the academic talerted classes at the elementary
school level seemed to back away from an outright endorsation c. 1icademic
streaming &t the high school level and suggested individual programming with
flexibility of subject choice as an alternative. Another brief, while
acknowledging the msrits of the streaming process, suggested caution in the
following words:

Although selecting and streaming individuals according

to their talents and capabilities seems desirable, a,word

of caution must be issued. The end result of such streaming

must necessarily preserve the dignity of the individual, so

that those working in jobs at the low end of the socic-

economic scale do not do so in despair of improving their

own situation. No violence is greater than psychological

violence, whereby a man is made to feel that his position

in society exists merely because he has been told repeatedly
that he is no good for anything else,

LRIC
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EVALUATING STUDENT PERFORMANCE

Considerable has been addressed to this Committee on the
question of student evaluation., There appears to be agreement that
evaluation of each students' progress must be made from time to time.

There is unanimity on the part of parents in wanting to know the progress

~46-
the c¢lass. The suggestion froir this group seems to t .zt the basis for
the evaluation should be found in drawing such comparisons. One pavent
described competition in the classroom as "healthy and needed.' Another
asked '"“why can't parents know exactly where junior stands scholastically

in relation to his classmates?" We believe that the tane of the majority

their child is making in school. There was no attitude of "it's the » of submissi -5, however, to favour not the comparison approach but rather
school's worry and responsibility--not ours." the following as expressed by a student.:

It is also fair to say that the majority favour a system of As far as the marking system, I feel that each

student should be graded according to what that
continuous evaluation rather than emphasis only on examinations. On. this student can do rather than be graded according to
the standards of the class.
point:
(Note: 1t appears that this attitude is in conflict with the findings
A parent said:
r¢ jarding competition among students in the public attitude survey.)
Schools should base reports of .a child's progress

on all of his work, not just on his examinations. All- On more than- one occasion we were told that it is unfair for one

important examinations encpurage rigidity and give very

false impressions. teacher to pass his or her evaluation along to the next year's teacher.

A student caid: One contributor expressed it as fcllows:

'Grade' students according to a percentile system It is disturbing to w2 that each year information

based on completion of assignments, originality, (derogatory) is handed onto the new teachers in a

attitude, effort put into the class, and less on school who could give a child a 'fresh' look if “they

'examinations' as such. were not hampered by many of the prejudicial stories

, handed on in the 'coffee' hours of the teacher's
A Home and School Association said: ’\‘ room.
K

Continuous evaluation is preferred to a single com-
prehensive exam at the end of the year's work. This
evaluation would be of ability, attitude, performanct
as well as end result, ’

However, the parents felt that the students should
have the experience of writing a comprehensive exam
sometime during the year.

A high school teaching staff commenting on this proposal said:

We believe continuous-progress evaluation, a
techniqque in which week-by-week student progress forms
a basis for promotion rather than only end-of-term exam-
inations, is a strong feature since it is ‘intended to
develop greater responsipility and better work habits
in students,

The basis for making the evaluation also prompted comment. Some

parents want to know where their children stand in comparison to others in

A few submissions were made suggesting that Department of
Education Examinations should re-appear r= the scene. Reasons for this
were expressed as follows:

It is thought that Department of Education exaus should
be written commencing in Grade VIIL. Analysis of the
results would assist in determining whetiter each school is
meeting its obligation to provide an adequate education
program.

And another:

1 am very disturbed by the disappearance of che
departmental exams: 1 know they were unpopular with
teachers but in my opinion the fact that they kept
teachers conscious of the curriculum was a great
advantage.

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:




ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

-47-

The foregoing view, of course, conflicts with those who suggested complete
abolition of all examinations. It should be 6oted that suggestions were
made for the introduction of University entrance examinations which, we

were told, would de-emphasize the competition praosently associated with

Grade XII1 examinations,

GUIDANCE COUNSELLING

Few matters received as much attention as that of guidance
counselling in the schools, The uay is past when this related mainly to
advire and direction as to one's vocation in life. Many, particularly
professionals in the 7Tield, came forward with valuable bsckground infor-
mation, philosophy and suggestions as to what is generally considered to
come under the umbrella of guidance counselling. If we were to single out
a representative definition it would be one enunciated, we were tsld, by
one of the local School Boards, It reads: "Guidance is a process in
which assistance is given in order that people may deal more adequately
with educational, vocational. personal or social problems."

- We heard a strong call for the immediate extension of adequate
counselling services into the elementary schools of the City. This came
from a group of elementary school principals, from seven Home and School
Associations in elementary schools, from a number of individuals as well
as the Youth Section of the Saskatoon City Police Depart@ent. The
following brief, prepared by four members of an elementary school staff
adequately states what many expressed in a variety of ways:

A school population is comprised of students with many

and varied needs, not the least of which is the need for

guidance counsellors actively involved as full time members

of our school staff.

Our request arises out of a situation in which we are
faced with many emotional and social problems. The causes

of these problems are:
(1) Homes with only one parent.
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(2) Families on welfare or out of work,

(3) Situations involving the police, welfare agencies and
other institutions are not uncommon.

(4) Certain sectors of society are fairly mobile and this
requires considerable testing, communications and
orientation procedurés.

(5) Lack of ability of both parents and teachers to cope
with children because of th changing needs of society.

Due to these problems which students face we find:

(a) A significant percentage of students are academically
retarded,

(b) Scores in basic skills such as arithmetic and language
arts are considerably below grade level.

Individual teachers are inhibited in being effective in

counselling students because of:

(a) The pupil-teacher ratio does not allow for individualized
attention.

(b) Classroom teachers are not qualified in this specialized
area of guidance.

(c) There is a need for interaction betweern student and
counsellor apart from the classroom sictuation because of
overt hostilities between teacher and student.

Many of ;these- emotional and social problems begin in the
early stages of a child's 1ife. It is at this time when
specialized attention should be provided and when more
desirable results could be obtained. The public is presently.
concerned with the spiralling costs of education, However,
the increased cost of guidance personnel in the formative
stages of a child's life would decrease the possibility of
him being a burden on society via jails, welfare institutions,
mental hospitals, and other social services for which
the public is presently being highly taxed. The public and
all concerned should be made more aware of the end results of
the "making do" with the shortage of psychologists and
guidance counsellors in our system.

"An ounce of prevention is worth a pound of cure."

The same need must of course be met in the high schools. It is
obvious that to some extent this is now being done. This is not to say
that the system at the high school level is perfect. Several reasons were
advanced to account for present inadequacies. We wcre told, however, that
in many instances the guidance counselling departﬁents were understaffed
and accordingly required additional personnel. A youth group from a Church
stated another reason in written form:

We would suggest that guidance counsellors be better

qualified with better capacity to find rapport with the
students, It would be desirable that the counsellors be
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closer to the students' generation.
When asked for clarification at a public meeting, the spokesman of the
group explained:

Partly what we were trying to say was we felt the
guidance counsellors in this school didn't really
know what was going on in our generation. We sort of
felt that they were too far away from knowing what
was going on. Like, they can't really help with:the
drug trafficking in this school j~or-they can't really
help with the people who are really confused and
dropping out. They're there and it says 'guidance
office - please walk in' on the door, but not many students
really want to do this. There was a suggestion at our
meeting last week that University students or students T
who had' just graduated from University, or students that
had graduated from Grade X11, would be excellent guid-
ance counsellors. They just made the same mistakes within
four or five years--they know what's going on a. . they
can maybe help us with our problems,

Another high school student expressed his concern as follows:
The point 1 was trying to make, I think that most
students are afraid or not aware of what guidance
counsellors can do for them. Guidance counsellors
are in their office, and;you have to go to the office,
and knock on the door, and the door opens. You stand
there and there is this big guy standing there and A
looking at you and says 'yes . . . what . . . can . . . -
e ..1,..do. .. for .. . you?' Andmost kids
say 'ah , . . I'll come back a little later.' They're
scared. They haven't any real idea of what you're
going to do for them.
On the other hand, we had a high school Guidance Counsellor tell us that
seventeen or eighteen out of every twenty students entering his office
come of their own volition.
While it appears that considerable emphasis at the high school
should be on the personal problem level, the vocational aspect remains very
important. The student should be able to learn of the requirements of
possible future employment and be given some exposure to the type of

vocations thattnferest him. Some students expressed the view that they

were not being adequately informed on entrance requirements with respect
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to both University and trade schools. If these opinions should be
representative then a remedying of this situation would certainly be
called for. A student made what we thought was a positive suggestion
when he said:
A direct link with Canada Manpower should be set
up in the Sc’ ool's guidance offices. Besides giving
good career outlocks statistics, manpower can show what

jobs are available for students who have decided to
quit school.

We have not found the formula for the ideal guidance counsellor,

Having excelled as a classroom teacher is not necessarily an assurance
=

that guidance counselling is one's field. Further, the "problem", the
"misfit¥ or the “unsatisfactory" must never be given this role. With -the
pressures upon the young generation of today it could perhaps be said that

the position of guidance counsellor is the most important in the school--

even more so than the principalship.

4
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RESULTS FROM THE PUBL1C ATTITUDE SURVEY - THE TEACHER AND THE SCHOOL

»Teachers should retire at an earlier age."
39% agree
b d
“To a-kott.of teachers, tzaching is just a job."
817 agree
"Teachers have a soft life."
o
L e
187 agree
"Teachers have too many bosses.'
427, agree - .
"35chools "tend to be run for the educators rather than for those
being educated."
- e -
507, agree
"Teachers salaries are too lLow."

347, agree

"Many teachers are clever at their own subjects but arce unable
to pass on their knowledge to students."

797 agree

"Teachers should take courses on new teaching methods and have
to pass exams,"

-

85% agree

"Studerits learn better working on group projects than working
by themselves."

787, agree

"Small classrooms should be enlarged so that several classes can
be together."

207, agree

1A teacher should have the freedom to teach a class the way he or
_she feels best,"

837 agree
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"Too many teachers just try to fill a student's head with facts."
607 agree

"A teacher should not be given the freedom to decide .on what he or she
is to teach." i

437 agree
"Teachers tend to rely too much on school text books.'
' 627, agree
"The grading system should be abolished."
497, agree

Min the classroom, encouraging competition among students is a
good thing."

707 agree

"The student's performance during the year is more important than
exam results,"

867 agree P

o'

"The most important person in the classroom is the guidance
counsellor."

537% agree

"There aren't enough guidance counsellors in the schools.
627, agree

“The guidance counsellors should not have to teach as well."

637 agree
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SUMMARY - THE TEACHER AND THE SCHOOL

1. A well-trained teaching staff is considered essenti%L"__
Particular attention in this matter should be directed to Division I.

2. An ability to attain academic success is not in itself a
sufficient reason to allow for entry into the teaching profession. An
interest in and a concern fsr the welfare of the individual student
coupled with an ability to communicate with and challenge that student
to work to his potential is of eéhal importance.

3. The quality of the teaching staff is the paramount concern
on the part of the public as it seeks the best atﬁainable education for
its young people, with emphasis on buildings, teaching aids and the like
being of secondary importance.

4, Because of the profound effect each teacher can have on
the future of a student, procedures must be strengthened to assure as far
as possible an absence of mediocrity in the practice and performance of
the teachiﬂg profession. The teaching profession should continue to have
the: benefit of tenure legislation but there should‘be modifications to
the law to ensure meanirgful appraisal of performance both prior to the
initial attainment of tenure and periodically during one's c;;;z} there-
af ter.

5. The suggestion was made that a system of payment based on
merit should be consider?d.

6. The role of the school orincipal is such a vital one that
great care must be taken in appointments to such positions. There must
be a recognition that every outstanding classroom teacher with a number

of years service is not necessarily going to make an outstanding school

administrator.
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7. Communication between elementary and secondary school
teachers is inadequate.

8. Confusion exists in the minds of many as to the nature of
changes that have taken place in recent years in methods of teaching and
the reasons that have prompted the changes.

9. The public will be receptive to changes in teaching
methods if it is shown that:

(a) a human relationship between teacher and pupil is

being maintained with encouragement of discussion
and student participation; and

(b) it is expected, for good reason, by those proposing

the change that an improvement in the educational
process will result.

10. On the part of parents at least, the open classrobm
concept has not been well received.

11. A better utilization'of community resources is desired,
including such areas as out-of-doors edﬁcation, field trips to industry
and Government and specialty lectures by professioﬁals.

12. The practice of acceleration has been brought into serious
question, particularly because of problems it often entails for the child
involved. Students should be kept as far as possible with their own age
group for the twelve year period. Enrichment programs appeared to be a
more satisfactory alternative.

13. Opinion on the merits of academic streaming, particularly
at the high school level are so varied that it is impossible to suggest
that there is a consensus one way or the other.

14, A progress evaluation must be made from time to time. The
result of the evaluation must be communicated to the parents in an

effective manner,
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15. There should be a de-emphasis on- the relative importance
of examinations in making the evaluation, with greater emphasis on day
to day achievement.

16. In the evaluation, emphasis should be given to the progress
of the student according tc his ability to achieve, rather than pitting
him against his peers through various comparisons.

17. Guidance counselling is an essential service in our
schools. There is a clear call for its introduction within the elementary
school systems.

18. Personnel selected for guidance counselling must be

carefully assessed for suitability with emphasis on an ability to

communicate with students.
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D, THE STUDENT AND THE SCHOOL

STUDENT VIEWPOINT

Student contributors, like other contributors to the inquiry,
expressed- their ideas and attitudes on a wide ringe of subjects. While
it is difficult, if not impossible, to pre=ent every student concern here
it is possible to present the student views which gained most frequent

attention.

T

Freedom vs, Discipline - Student Attitude. A particular concern

among the senior high school students who responded to the inquiry's

- invitation was one relating to the discipline vs, freedom controversy
noted elsewhere in this report. Students, for the most part, stated that
they would like more freedom from external control or direction in areas
of curriculum. zelection, school attendance, topics of discussion and rules
of behavior. While many noted that there has been some relaxation of
school controls in these areas they did feel that more freedom would be
desirable,

\ It is interestipg to note, however, that even among the students
there is dissent from this suggestion of further relaxation of‘external
controls. The controversy reported elsewhere is apparent even among
students but if measured in terms of numbers of students who expreséed .

themselves to the Committee it is apparent that more students would ad#ocate
further relaxation of external controls and directions for students than
would advocate the reverse,.

One student, claiming that a further relaxation of external

controls is warranted stated:

If people begin to look at some of the completely
idiotic rules set down for students, they begin to
wonder if they [the students] ever left public school
. . . The administrators like to tell everyone they
are treated equally because we live in a democracy.
As far as students are concerned school is far from

o democratic, Students are given the 'love it or leave
[ERJ!: it' choice.
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This same student continued by saying:

In some classes where on occasion the student
is given the chance to express opinions [he] is
cut down by the teachers. This . . . stifles
involvement. 1 feel class involvement should be
encouraged by teachers,

Andther suggested that high school students should have freedom to
select classes:

In terms of subject selection, the student should be
informed [about] what subjects are required for what-
ever field he will be entering, but thereafter the
student, not parents or teachers, should choose his
subjects.

Referring to classroom actendance one student commented that:

When students have reached the high school level
they should be able to decide if they can afford to
miss a few classes. For some students they would be
better off somewhere else than in a class that they
could very easily catch up, especially if they have a
lot of homework from other classes. As long as they
don't expect the teachers to give them a lot of extra
help they can only hurt themselves.

Another student reinforcing the above commented as follows:

I1f he [the student] chooses to spend class time in
the library or doing something else he should not be
reprimanded arnd forced to fabricate a good excuse,
Surely our system can allow for some flexibility of a
student's mood and interest. By the time a person
reaches the age of secondary schooling, his taste in
clothing and style should be honored. The apathetic,
irresponsible citizen is partially a result of the
school system which never allowed him to make decisions
concerning himself. The rebellious youth is often a
student who sees open abandonment of established
principles as the way in which he will finally achieve
personal dignity and freedom.

This is not to suggest, however, that these contributors would
wish these increased freedoms for all students. Almost all student
contributors felt that these freedoms should be available only for
mature students--students in their senior years of high school.

Give the students some responsibility., At present
we are told when to be in class, what class to be in
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at what time, and so on. . . . Give a student the
choice of whether or not to atterd class. . . .

1f he misses more than a certain percentage of

classes make him drop that class. Let him make errors
and let him learn from them. . . . I don't think
that this responsibility should be loaded on grade
nines or tens, but grade elevens and twelves could
handle it,

It may be said then, that while all students do not agree that
a further relaxation in school discipline would be beneficial, there are
a majority of students who would wish it.

P et od e b

Relevancy. Another frequently expressed concern by students was
a call for "relevancy" of subject material. A substantial number of
student contributors felt that many of their subjects. particularly the
compulsory subjects, are irrelevant to what they might wish to do after
completing their schooling. One student expressed the concern somewhat
representatively as follows:

Although the cry of relevancy is an overworked cliche
in [stqdeng]protest evervwhere, its importance in education
cannot be overemphasized. The inquiring mind can only be

encouraged if the work offered is meaningful.

Semesteér System. A third major thrust of student opinion was

a strong endorsement of the semester system. While some suggested that
further refinements would be of benefit, almost without exception the
semester system gained a high degree of student support. Some students
suggested a better balance of '"easy" and '"hard"™ subjects to equalize the
work load over the two semesters. Others felt that classréom assignments
seemed to be more demanding under the semester system than under the old
system and called for an easing of the work load.

Representative of student comments in this area are the

following:
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I like the semester system very much because
one can concentrate on a few subjects at a time
and it gives you much more time to study.

I like the idea of the semester system because
the homework isn't .as  .vy at one time . . .

[The semesteﬁ]system seems to be far better
than any other system.

Other Student Attitudes. Several other matters were brought
forward by student contributors: An endovsement of the split-shift
system, a recognitia. of student apathy, the in-appropriateness and
unfairness of certain marking or grading systems, a call for a broader
curriculum, particularly in the social sciences and fine arts, a better
co-ordination of efforts of elementary schools and secondary schools,
and a call for individualized and highliy personal attention for each
student.

While it might seem from the foregoing that students are highly
dissatisfied with the present system of schooling, the committee does not
feel this to, be the case. For the most part student contributors felt
that Saskatoon schools are very "likeable" and good--but that some
attention is needed in the areas noted. One minor concern expressed by
two students may hold the key to understanding the nature of the comments
made by others, These two suggested that school authorities should be
highly communicative and understanding of a student's individual circum-
stancer. These students felt that there should be an appropriate place
to go where student complaints and suggestions would be aived. 1f such
a body were readily available to students perhaps ‘they could feel more
secure and self-directing.

There should be someone or some place where students

could go to air their legitimate complaiuts. . . .

[This someone or some placej should have the power to
investigate and correct the problems.
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DISCIPLINE vs. FREEDOM - COMMUNITY ATTITUDE

Areas -of Concern. The general public also paid a great

deal of attention to the discipline vs. freedomaspect -of Saskatoon
schools. How many restrictions should teachers and schools place
oh students? How many rules and regulations should there be
governing a student's conduct? How much freedom from external
control or direction should be granted to students? This subject,
it soon became apparent, generally evoked a highly emotional
response and no small amoent of controversy. This is probably
because everyone has his own view about freedom.

We must also mention, by way of introduction, that the
concepts of freedom and discipline were frequently left undefired.
Contributors would suggest, for example, that more rigid discipline
is needed, or that more freedom is needed but would often leave the
interpretation of the matter to the Inquiry committee.

Among those who did specify the types of discipline or
freedom they advocated there appeared to be five broad areas of
concern. These are presented as follows:

1. Curriculum areas
Range of Suggestions - The students should be required to study
basic subjects; or the students should
have free choice in the selection of
courses for study.
2. School Attendance
Raﬁge of Suggestions - The students should be required to attend
school and classes; or, the students
should be free to decide whether or not

to attend school or class.

I




Performance

Range of Suggestions - The students should be under pressure to
produce results; or, the student should be free to
work at his own pace.

4, Topics of Discussion

Range or rgestions - The students should not be allowed to waste
time in discussion of metters unrelated to the
course or curriculum; or, the students should be
free to discuss any and all matters of importance to
him however controversial these subjects may be.

5., Rules of Behavior

Range of Suggestions - The student should comply with the school

rules and regulations of behavior; or, the student
should te allowed the freedom to behave as his or her
conscience would dictate.
It became apparent, therefore, that the controversy over
discipline vs, freedom in Saskatoon schools centers around the question

of how much freedom from external control or direction should be

granted to students in the above matters.
Public attitude in the area of discipline vs., freedom was divided

into three main groups. There are those, on one hand, who would suggest

that schools should enforce more rigid discipline in student matters. Another

group exists who would favor the granting of more freedom to the student, A

third group exists who would suggest that students should be allowed more

freedom only when they are ready to accept the responsibility of
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exercising their freedom well. (This is perhaps, an over-simplification

of positions taken by the contributors as an overlapping from one group
to another in different matters did occur.)

The first group of contributors, including some students,
thought that there should be more rigid discipline in the schools. They
felt that more external control and direction of students would be
beneficial. They suggested, for example, that students should be
required to study certain basic subjects so that fundamental skills and
knowledge would be acquired. In addition, they suggested that students
should be *pushed" academically so that they will produce and so that they
‘ ~will learn their subjects thoroughly. They commented that students should
learn to respect their teachers and learn to respect and obey the rules
governing behavior which have been established by the schools. 1In
addition, they felt that students should learn to respect and obey the
rules of society at large. One student wrote this:

[T]he breakdown in rules has caused students to be

lazy; students don't have to make sacrifices any more.
They have no respect for themselves and show little

concern for others. *; . . I feel phat'high‘school
students are not mature enough to operate in-a 'laissez-
faire! atmosphere. . . . Students nieed rules and discipline

to develop habits which are needed in the outside world.
A parent commented this way:
If you don't give them [the students] a solid frame-
work of reference with an appropriate reward and
pun shment system, you |the parents and school] are
sloughing off your responsibility as a decision maker
onto them and this is just not fait,

Other comments from various coniributors which may be taken as somewhat

representative of this first group are as follows:
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[Young people cannoﬁ] be allowed to proceed at their
own speed, 1t is axiomatic that human beings work only
as fast as they have to unless they are doing something
they enjoy. 1 would agree that a particular topic should
be made as interesting as possible but to some, mathe-
matics, for example, will always be an-undesirable
experience. But it does not follow from this that a
person should be allowed to proceed 'at his own speed'
or, even worse, that he should be given the choice of
studying or not studying mathematics, This lack of
imposition of discipline could leave a gap in a student's
education which may never be filled and which he will
later regret having. Thus discipline and firm guidance
are necessary components of education.

The students work should be planned, the student
should not be left to work at his own speed. . . .
A little more pushing on the part of the teacher is
needed. .

1'd be in favor of more discipline in the schools
with prompt communication with the parents if the
student is causing a disturbance within the classroom

* e e

. . . There is no way I want my child to attend a
school, where there is no discipline or order. I don't
feel the teachers should beat the children to a pulp,
but they should certainly be able to have some way to
show authority and to get the children's respect,

Ef]he school has reneged upon its obligation a
complex society has placed upon it if it abandons its
responsibility and tells the student - pick your own
content and do your own thing. . . . The schools are
obligated to take a stand against those who would have
their will regardless of the infringement of the rights
of others. '

[?chool{] must assume that individuals need to grow,
need tc have direction in their growth, and, where

necessary, impose penalties upon the non-co-operative.

The second group would suggest that students are not presently

allowed sufficient freedom. Too many rules and restrictions are imposed

on students when in fact, they claim, {uae students should have freedom

in any and all educational pursuits. This group would suggest that the

student have the freedom of choice of course; freedom to attend or not

to attend school or classes; freedom to work at his own pace; freedom
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to discuss and to probe into matters without

to express his individuality and creativity.

restriction; and freedom

After all, claims one

contributor., "education is not something a person should be forced

into." Such freedom would develop within the individual, they contend,

a sense of responsibility and self direction and wouild prevent the
feeling of alienation and de humanization that they claim students are

presently experiencing,

Representative of this group might be the following comments from six

respondents:
Schools must introduce students to the use of their
‘ minds for themselves and for sheer enjoyment, by

enceuraging responsibility and self-discipline., . . .
This objective is part of the modern school systems but
the present rigid class struvcture--especially in the
high- schools- -does not aid the development of these
abitities. . . ,

- »

-

Erhere 15] too much regimentation and conformity.
All children are expected to fit into a certain slot.
y - . o - » Children are not given the opportunity of self
discipline or allowed to explore themselves. They are
disciplined by external forces often negative in spirit,

Society has no right to compel pupils to conform to
any regimented school system,

A major objective of educdtion should be to increase
the independence of the pupils in the direction and
conduct of their own learning, . . .

A variety of . ., . methods or combinations of methods
might be made available to students so that some choice
in learning method is possible, When courses are taken
in school, the teacher should be an optional rather than
a compulSory reference, , . . It is important that in
our world [ihe students] learn to identify and solve
problems on their own,

£ I am in favor of a good deal of freedom for the

individual student including the freedom to dress in any

manner. consistent with society's laws of decency, freedom

to have his hair any length he likes, freedom to indulge

- ' in polifical discussion and activity., freedom not to do
his homework and freedom to fail with -dignity.

Y o
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The third and largest group of contributors suggested that
students should be granted additional freedom as they accept and
demonstrate increased respornsibilities for their education\ Some
rules and restrictions should be removed gradually as the student
matures and as he develops a sense of responsibility and self
direction. One commented that:

. . , to grow into responsible, socially aware people,
children should take more responsibility for educating
themselves. Since freedom and responsibility go hand in
hand I would like to see students given as much freedom
in choosing their program of studies as they are able to
handle at any given time.

Another commented that:

, - « children are largely at the receiving end of
this process, especially in the earliest years but
obviously they need an atmosphere at school and at home
which will allow them graddally to develop the ability
to make their own decisions. -

Several comments representing this third viewpoint are as
follows:

Students should be free to become individuals:
freedom should be given out hand in hand with
responsibility and taken away if abused, . . ,
Freedom is the road to maturity.

An attempt should be made to teach the child to
develop more responsibility for his own education as
he grows older. In this way compulsory attendance
may not be necessary in the last years of high school,

I am not advocating free schools as such, Certain
order must be maintained but not for its own sake. As
arbitrary rules are relaxed, mcst students lose the
desire to rebel. [Our high schoog is an example of
where regulations were negotiated between students and
staff, the students themselves supplying the necessary
pressure to bring most transgressors into line.

At what stage then, would this third group suggest that the
student is ready to accept the responsibility of being granted more
freedom than now exists? 1t varies. Basically they would suggest, we

feel, that the senior years in high school are appropriate, depending
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both upon the individual student and the nature of the "freedom" to
be granted.

We can summarize these ideas then by stating that while
some citizens feel that there should be more discipline (external
control and direction) in the schools and while others suggest that
students should be granted an increased amount of freecom, a third
body of citizens feels that there may be a 'meeting"™ point. This
group (the latter) which encompasses a large number of individuals
are prepared to suggest that students should be granted increased
freedom as they accept the responsibility for that freedom. These
citizens would encourage more student self direction in specific
areas of school activity. They would suggest that students who accept
the responsibility for their education should be released from some
controls and imposéd directions.

STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE COUNCILS

If students are to have additional freedom by what means
should it be brought about? Should schools just discontinue certain
rules of behavior? Can the students have a voice in the development
of their role in the school? Of particular concern here is the number
of submissions which are critical of Student Representative Councils,
(It became apparent that contributors thought - imarily in terms of
high school Student Representative Councils,’

The primary concern voiced in submissions to the Inquiry is
that these Councils are elected merely on the basis of 'popularity
contests'", It is claimed that these Councils are not presently an
effective means of voicing student opinion; they may act as a dance
committee or they may determine where student funds are to go, but

they do-not serve a purpose in relating student concerns to the
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teaching staff., Moreover, it was observed more than once that the
staff "advisor" to the Student Representative Council in fact vetoes

any positive suggestions that the committee may make that departs from

the status quo,

The following comments -to the inquiry concerning Student
Representative Councils are indicative of the type of statements
received:

Student councils are a sham--they are in effect
dance committees. Student council elections are
personality contests with no serious discussion of
the problems facing students since student councils
have no power anywzy.

An average S.R.C. spends its time deciding what
percentage of student fees go to what clubs aad
activities, trying to squeeze an extra dance out of
the administration, and possibly even trying for a
smoking lounge. It is because of these priorities
that this experiment with democracy is a total
failure. 1t is also because of the lack of any
issues that this election becomes nothing more than

a popularity contest . . . R

The student government should first be free of

the teacher's ‘advisor! who, with his veto power is’

actually the real ‘'student' repicsentative.

It is of interest here to’note that despite a formal
invitation to each of the Student Representative Councils in Saskatoon
high schools, not one chose to respond to the Inquiry's request, Not
one Student Representative Council made a presentation outlining student
concerns in their -school. (The ILnquiry Committee subsequently explored
other and more effective means of gaining knowledge of student concerns.)

We must acknowledge the efforts of all those Student Repre-
sentative Council's past and present who have worked long and hard hours
to effect their wishes., But tﬁe idea is apparent that the present
structure of the Student Representative Councils in Saskatoon schodls

is not considered effective as a voice for student concerns; nor do these

councils appear to play any effective role in running the school,
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RESULTS FROM THE PUBLIC ATTITUDE SURVEY - THE STUBTI: ~.0 THE SCHOOE

The young people of Saskatoon. {ages sivteen. to nineteen) were

surveyed as a separate group in iiue tntal survey. Their opinion is
inciuded in the Saskatoon.sample that we have used thiroughcut this

. A7 . . o
report. 1In this section of the report in particular we thougiht it of

special irnterest to supply comparative opinions.

Young Peopie - Saskatoon
"There are a lot ;f unnecessary regilations in schools." l

77% agree E 497, agree
"Schools are unfair to the students."

317 agree 217 agree
"Students have too much freedom."

117, agree _ 417, agree
"There is not enough dis;ibliné in the schools."

187, agree - N 477 agree

"Boys in school should be made to have théir hair short."

67 agree L= 407, agree
"Students should be allowed to smoke in the classrooms if they
want to."
327 agree 11% agree

"High school students should be allowed to choose their own
curriculum,"

937 agree 73% agree
"There should be no compulsory subjects in high school."

SQZ agree 32% égree .
"Most students enjoy going to schcol."

607 agree - 78% agree
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. Young People Saskatoon

“S3ixteen and seventeen year old students are treated like adults
in tue school."

o T T TR T e, B TR, WA
M T
.

477 wgree 497 agree

"Sénior high school students should have a say in the running
of the school.”

847 agree 57% agree

"The principal only meets the student when the studert has done
. something wrong."

717 agree ' R 497 agree

"Those who run the schools rely a lot on the Students"
| Representative Council."

30% agree “ 227, agree

"The opinions of the Students' Representative Council carry a
lot of weight with those in authority."

487, agrée . 437 agree

"The elections for the Students' Representative Councils are
just popularity contests,"

697 agree 60% agree
"The semester system is a very good one,™

957 agree 87% agree
"It's a good idea to have students going to school in shifts.”

_— 497, agree 37% agree
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SUMMARY - THE STUDENT AND THE SCHOOL

1. Most senior high school gﬁudents in Saskatoon schools are
basically satisfied with the present school system(s) but they do feel
that some changes must be made,

2. Contributing students recommend a greater degree of
I student self-difection as it relates to class selection, school attendance
and rules far behavior. Students suggest that a high degree of self-
direction should be available to senior high school students with lesser

amounts available to lower years.

=

3. Students wish to study material which they feel is relevant
to their lives and future pursuits,

4, Students endorse tne semester system and this is in line
with community thinking.

5, Public opinioa is not polarized on the extremes of studeunt
regimentation or total student freedom. There appears to be weight in
favour of a '"meeting point" between those who advocate more external
controls and directions for students and those who advocate more student
freedom This meeting point would appear to be that senior high schoel
students could be granted additional freedom from external control and
direction as they demonstrate an increased sense of responsibility for
their schooling.

6. Student Repr.:sentativ2 Councils are not considered effective

in com. icating student concerns to school authorities.
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THE PARENT AND THE SCHOOL
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E. THE PARENT AND THE SCHOOL

PARENTAL CONCERNS - REPORTING

Much public attentior is focused upon the parents and their
relationship’to the school. Among the comments relating to this
subject which gained repeated expression was a concern tnat parents
should be provided with more information, both by teachers and the

school.

There were those who wished only that teachers would provide

the parents with more or better information about his or her child.
They expressed the concern that they would like to be better informed
about their child's progress, strengths and weaknesses, and his
interests. Some felt that the parent-teacher interview is an effec-
tive tool in achieving this goal but did note some shortcomings. In
addition, it was suggested that an easily interpreted, written report,
dealing only in concrete fact is also necessary. Furthermore, some
would like teachers to better inform parents as to how they might help
their child in his schoolwork.
The ideal reporting system would be a combination

of teacher-parent interviews, marks and students

standing in the class. Report cards which merely

state that the students' performance in a class is

satisfactory, or that he is working to the best of

his ability, fail to give the parent guidance on

the direction in which the child should be encouraged.

Furthermore, it is unfair to the child not to give

him an assessment of his limitations, which he will

eventually learn about in later life.
The suggestion has been made that during a parent-teacher interview
or a portion of it &t least, the child should be in attendance.

A few briefs expressed criticism based on a negative

experience during a parent-teacher interview, representative of which

is the following:
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1 would like better teacher-parent interviews.

Both of us are on best behavior, nervous and neither
- will admit ignorance. If I object to a subject, otr

if 1 wish to find a reason for my child's changed
behavior 1 should not be subjected to skepticism.
1 am very tired of the old cliche ‘it's not the
same as when you went to school', or ‘we don't do
that anymore',

Some conflict exists over the manner of communicating marks

to parents. Scae suggest the percentage system; others the alpha-
betical expression. Others question the content of the written report
itself, one parent expressing her concern as follows:

Another area of lack of communication is that of
reporting progress. The present non-specific, twice
yearly reports are most inadequate. A common report
we have received on our children runs something like
this - 'your child is doing very well, is pleasant
in the classroom. I wish all my pupils were like that.'
Fine. But how much does he know? He is going to
school to learn. 1If so, shouldn't we know what he is
learning and how well he is learning it?

The real concern of parents that we sensed in this 'entire
area i< perhaps represented by the parent who expressed himself as
follows:

The first point we would make is ti '~ ‘'he format
of the reports have chang-d each year a. ' .v2 changed
in such a way that it makes comparison of our daughter's
progress over the years very difficult, if not impossible.
« . « It has been suggested to us that there is no need
for reports to be issued at 1l in viéw of the fact that
parent-teacher interviews can always be arranged. We
disagree very strongly with this attitude on twc grounds.
Firstly many parents will find -it difficult to get to
these interviews during school hours and seccndly because
it is more difficult for teachers to be completely
objective in personal discussions with parents than it
is in a formal report. It is difficult to foresee
reports ever becoming redundant and it would seem
advisable for each school to have a standard report
format if only to reduce the degree of subjec wvity of
student rating between successive teachers, it changes
in the reporting procedures become necessary, as they
must from time to time, then they should be adequately
explained to parents and should be no less. informative
than the preceding method.

L 1
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A professional group r~flected the view of many when they said,

. . . <he parent-teacher interview is most
satisfactory but with the high mobility rate of
our population today the child also needs the
security of a written bYasic reporting standard.

PARENT- TEACHER COMMUNTICATLIONS

Some felt that the school cou ' better inform its community

about matters of interest in the school. Such information as

o> : .
I _ programs or courses offered, teaching methods or current problems

-~ facing the school could be passed along to loca” ~1rents. An area of
1 considerable concern is that, in many instancc .here is not the free

flow of information that parents f-el should be present. The reasons
wh&'thfsAis so appear to vary from one situation to another. Théré
appears to be present a genuine desire on the part of parents to keep
abreast of the progress of their ch:ldren. While considerable favour-
able comment has been made about the parent-teacher inté;;;z; technique,
it is obvious that it has not yet been refined to the point where a
free and frank exchange takes place. While the teaching profession is
undoubtedl ;s as anxious as parénts are to open freely the communication
lines, there are instances where parents feel that they are not met with
openness on raising their concerns. Some parents feel restrained about
offering criticism lest it, in effect, be held against members of their
families. Representative of responses that have led us to make these
comments are the following.

From a comminity association:

Because of the fact that parents are not ..ways able

s . to ascertain from their children what is happening to
them at school, the school should assume more responsi-

bility for keéping parents informed of the school
situation.
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Parents should be provided with an outline of the
courses that their children are taking, particularly
at the secondary level, the texts and hours of work
expected in each course, so tha: they can assist their
children in their school work.

Parents should also be advised on the extent of
sucial problems amongst scnool children, such as
theft, drop-outs, sex and drugs. Every -effort should
be made by the School Boards to develop effective
plans to minimize these problems and par ts should
be made aware of such plans.

From a parent:

It seems impossible to know what is offered in

- instruction except by cross-examining our children
(a mosi inaccurate technique). Most teachers insist
it is too time-consuming to inform the parents. An
exception to this was a vear one teacher, who, for the
first term sent home weekly news letters explaining
what the children had covered in the skill subjects.
I see this form of communication extremely valuable
from a parents' point of view. It is impossible to
commend or criticize when one doesn't know the scope
of instruction.

From a parent:

Parent-teacher relations to be put on a more
personal basis with avoidarce of large-group
discussions in which the t2achers ‘talk'! to the
parents but never have time to listen. Seminars and
panel discussions, committees and study groups to be
used to develop a solid and worthwhile exchange.

From a comment made at one of our public meetings:

As a parent it is my feeling that it is very
difficult to gec any hearing at the school if one
criticizes. The teachers are very much on: the
defensive. We are told that the school wants to
know what we think. They want us to work along with
them as a member of a team, but I find they really
want to hear from us as long as we agree with them;
as long as we do not criticize anything they do.

PARENTAL INVOLVEMENT

Parallel to the wish for more information is the desire that
parents and other citizens could be more actively involved in the

school program. Almost without exception those who addressed themselves

n————
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to the role of the parent in the school catled for increased parental
involvement. "Educators have long held that parent involvement can
greatly improve the educational process," claims one contributor, and
suggests further that ". . . ALL we ask is the opportunity to work
closely «ith educators so that we both might carry out our responsi-
bil ties more effectiveiy." —

The nature a~d extent of the involvement indicated varies
from one submission to another but basically the concerns maysbe
presented as follows. Some contribuchs talt that invoivement should
extend only to the parents taking an active interest in the education
of their child. This group felt that paients should be allowed and

encouraged to visit in the classroom and that in addition, they would .

not only be informed but also consulted in matters affecting their

‘child's educational program (e.g. curriculum, teaching methods, and the

saching of moral or religious values). One contributor, noting a
difficulty in bringing this about, stated that "parents who would like
to take ar active part in their children's schooling often have a very
limited possibility to do so"™.

To some citizens the extent of involvement goes beyond this.’
A particularly strong emphasis was placed by contributors on the use
of voluntary assistants in the schools. They stated that community
involvemé;t, and more particularly parental involvement, on a voluntary
basis should be encouraged. A variety of uses were suggested including
lunchroom supervision, playground supervision, assisting teachers with
supervision on class excursions and field trips, reading to primary
grade groups while teachers are engaged in other mcre demanding
activitieé, assisting with instruction in specific areas were one's

special knowledge and training could prove useful (e.g. science, social
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studies, physical education, or art . 1t should be noted that not
only were parents suggested as a potential source for volunteer
assistance, but older or more advanced studeﬁts as well as retired
citizens or other interested community members were also recommended.
Some suggested that the Schocl Boards should examine the feasibility
of training parents or other voluntesr assistants so that they could y
be utilized more effectively in the classroom setting.

Several submissions directed to the Inquiry would indicate
that, to a considerable extent, citizens hold the view that the
parent’s role should go much farther. Parents wish to be observers
and to be consulted in matters of importance to their own child, but
they do noﬁ wish to limit themselves to providing voluntary assistance
only. These people would suggest that parental opinion should be
sought and utilized in a deéision-making roie, both at the local S
school and board level. They feel that parents should be consulted
and actively participate in making decisions about educational aims
and‘ijectives, curriculum planning, and teaching methods or practices. g
“Parents today should become an integral part of school life,"
suggeshed one citizen group. "As parents we feel that we share a
collective responsibility witk the Board, and educators, fgr the
education of our children," commented another g:oup. The statement
of one contributor which can be said to be reasonably representative
of a point of view held by others was this: "Decisions r;éarding
curriculum,?%ghogl philosc .ies, local priorities and the like,
should be made by the people, and not left to administration staff
and professionsl educators, though certainly the advice of the pro-

fessionals should be songht and carefully -weighed."

To summarize this point then, the Committee has found that
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a large number of citizens expect that parents should become more
involved in educational matters in Saskatoon schools. They feel
that they should be*informed and consuited in matters affecting
; Lo . A . - .
their children's education. A strong feeling exists that parents
o . .. . .
v®3and—other interested citizens should be used as volunteer assistants

~-in the schools. Tola lesser extent, parents wish to contribute in

| g

some way to making decisions about school programs and practices

and School Board policies.
At present, the Home and School Associations represent the

ne R g S—
*one possib mgans £or the parents to become involved with the school

" in a community way. It was suggested that this involvement is far

" from adequate. Those who represent the home in this associaticn
have the feeling of being a lesser partner--rather even more a servant
'thaqééxghrgner. Some seek a more responsible arrangement. One c.tizen

made the following comment: ] -
The real issue is how much [parents may be able
to do in a school if they are not relegated to the
- 'servants' jobs. The Home and School which I have
.been invclved in were auxiiiary in nature because of
the way they operated and their constitution.

1 do not believe that community involvement can
occur effectively uniess two changes take place.
The first is some sort of legal recognition or
motion by the Boards, that the community can have -
- . a voice in the schools. . . .

The—second change which is a prerequisite for
community involvement is the commitment of a school's
staff to this idea and the beginning of the
necessarily-slow process of working out an arrange-
ment suitablé to the personalities concerned. This
is a recognition of the impossibility of imposing

. this kind of change on people; rather the opportunity
would be made available.

One woman who urged home and schools to seek their proper

role warned against wasting their energies in "spending all their time

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic: -
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on busywork such as fun fairs, rinks, bake sales, and talks on

"My Trip to Russia®.

It is apparent that the public feels a need for a more
~adéquate forum for the presentation of ideas, the airing of
complaints and the redress of grievances. One parent described the
problem and reflected on it as follows:

Feed-back from- the community to the school system
has been lacking in any formal sense until the
Citizen's School Inquiry was set up. I believe this
is an essential ‘*step’ in having a better educational
system. 1 use the word ‘'step' because 1 hope that
the process begun in this way will be continued in
some form or other. 1 generally sense that people
feel powerless to influence the school system. . . .

Conversations with some of the elected members of
the Boards (present and past) have led me to believe
that there is a great need for people to be able to
contact someone when problems, crises or opportunities
for change affect their children. .. . . 1 propose
that an impartial, respected member of the community,
who was well versed in educational matters should
serve as an ‘ombudsman' for the system. We, as a
society, are recognizing the need for ombudsmen as a
check and balance on bureaucratic functioning and 1
subnit, that in the vital and crucial area of edu-
cation, such a role should be filled,
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RESULTS FROM- THE PUBLIC ATTITUDE SURVEY - THE PARENTS AND THE SCHOOL

"Parents should have the opportunity to meet their child's teacher early
in the first term.™

95% agree

"The only times the school contacts parents is when there is something
‘wrong."

627 agree
“Parents tend to feel uncomfortable when talking to teachers."
567% agree
"Parents should be allowed to observe in the classtooms.”
697, agree
"Parents should not be involved in how the school is run." -
227, agree

"Any decision to be made about a student's curriculum or course should
y
be a joint one of the student, the teacher and the parents."

. 887 agree

"Parents should be prepared to put in time on behalf of their child's
" school."

857 agre
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SUMMARY - THE PARENT AND THE SCHOOL

. 1t is felt that parents should be provided with more
information about the program and progress of their child. The parent-
teacher interview is viewed favourably by parents but they w;uld also
like the security of a basic, written report which is easily interpreted
and which deals only in concrete facts. 1t .s suggested that these
written reports should have a format which is to some extent standardized.

2. 1t 1is felt that parents should be ?etter informed by the
classroom teacher and by the school about the teaching program »ffered,
teaching methods employed, and the problems currently faced by the school.

3. There is -a strong call by parents for an increased amount of
parental involvement in the school program. Parents wish to be allowed to
visit the classroom freely and to be included in the classroom setting as
volunteer assistants. Some wish to play a more active role im the school
by serving as a consultant in the decis%on-making process,

4, 1t is suggeséed that home and sc*ool associations should
become a stronger and more responsible body for voiciqg parental concerns
to the school.

5. Parents, as well as students, expressed a desire for an

appropriate forum for presenting ideas and airing complaints.

— e v
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F. ADDITIONAL IMPORTANT ISSUES

EARLY EDUCATION

A few presentatfdﬁg asked for assistance for those parents who
have a desire to prepare a child for schﬁol in his earlier ye. rs, but
are unsure of how to proceed. One person expre%sed concern "that very
early intellectual development is so rapid, [énd] . . . attitudes are
gained before age three and strengthened to age seven.'" A group suggesteé
a possible procedure: ‘"primary consultants [pould] act as resource people
for seminars in child development and demonstrations on methods that
parents can use in developing skills and concepts in their pre-school
chiluren”,

Aware that there were on-going studies i; this area, the
Inquiry at the outset made no special effort to encourage response on the
subjeéﬁ of kindergarten. Nevertheless, as the hearings progressed,
response became very significant, running two-thirds in favour of publicly-
supported kindergartens throughout the city. Respbndents cemanded equal
opportunities for all, quélified staff, a strengthened and stand-rdized
curriculum, low enrdlment (not more than 20), and continued in-service
training for kindergarten teachers, Many saw advantages in kind-rgarten:
for example, as a diagnostic clinic.for early recognition of mentel,
emotional and learning problems; or as a place which "helps children to
manage themselves and grow'physically, socially, emotionally, and intel-
léctualiy," and aésiggs thém "to find a comfortable con&ributing ptace in
[ﬁheT?ﬂ—Eggld." " Déspite their insistence on its importance and universal

q

availability, most felt that kindergarten should not be compulsory.

B
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The approximate one-third opposing universally available
kindergarten did not all give the same‘reésoas for their opposition. One
dismissed the whole program as a "waste of‘time and money,'" asserting
that the first two months of Grade One repeats kindergarten. Others
felt that parents should have the option of choosing other early programs
(e.g. music, art, dance, swimming) in preferencéhto kindergarten. The
opposition of a large group centered around the question of priorities.
Acknowledging that there is a limit to the finances available, these
respondents preferred that available monies be directed first of all to
the developing of the best Division One-program possible.

There was considerable feeling expressed regarding the impor-

tance of Division One, 'the years when the most crucial learning takes

place." ‘'riority was sought here in such factors as emphasis on small

classes and individual attention, and the hiring of teachers with the

highest academic qualifications. One group expressed their fecelings as
follows: "For primary grades especially, provide the best qualified
staff, keep classes ;méll, concentrate remedial readir, pecialists and
speech therapists on the younger students, and assign non-professicnal
duties to non-teachers,"

One person sought greater freedom for the Grade One-teacher
to depart from certain standard school rules; it was taought that
children should be introduced to the full day of school gradually,
according to individual child's ability to adjust tothe now
situation.

There- appears to-'be growing interest in enrolling children
i3 school at an earlier age, reflecting the practice presently f .owed

in some European countries. Television has had a great. impact on pre-

school children (e.g. Sesame Street); they seem to be better. prepared
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for academic work than children of a generation ago. It was suggested
by ‘one respondent that children of four to five years have the cognitive

abilities to engage in academic parsuits,

PUPIL-TEACHER RATIO

A significant number of briefs showed concern for pupil-teacher
ratios, 1In asking for lower rati;s, they madé the foilowing observations:

l; The lowest ratio should be maintained in Division One.

2. Low ratios should exist in certain subject areas, such as
Art, French and Language Arts.

3. The present low ratios in special education should be
maintained. N

4. The use of the term "pupil-teacher ratio" is unsatisfactory.
Parents do not want to be misled by figures which have been averaged;

PRSIy

they want to be told whet . in working out the ratio, other than full-

time classroom teachers hav :een included. What parents really want, is

to knov that there is a limit to the number of children assigned to a

S

particular teacher 'in a particular classroom.

This significant appeal for lower numbers in classrooms was
based solely on one argument: ¢oncern for the chil” as an individual.
One parent said:

For learning basic skills . . , individualized

teaching programs are more_successful. 1t is

difficult I}or the teacher] to cope adequately with

large groups of students,

A home and school said:
Many of the student's problems could be solved
by more individual attention. Integration of
. children with special needs in regular classrooms
" ~would be facilitated through smaller classes.

Another home and school said that lower numbers enable the teacher *to

more readily asses each student's work [and] to be available to help
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in problem areas.!" And another group commented, “Individualized

relevant education cannot take place with the -present size of classes.”

ADULT EDUCATION

The participation of the publicly-funded systems of education
in Adult Education was discussed by a few respondents. The need was
expressed by cne man who had had orly a Grade Three education as follows:
"Wheré ds we go? I can name you a lot of people who have bigger problems
than 1 have maybe, but still have no place to ¢ *

An extension of the present evening classes was suggested,
Another person requested “that the Boards make a policy of welcoming
adults to any classes which they wish to attend, at no cost,” having in
mind the unemployed who are free during thé‘gay, but who are apprehensive
about attending regular classes. i

It was suggested by one group that the Boards suppoi. the
work of the Saskatoon Council for Continuing Educétion. The same group
asked that the Boards accept responsibility for a **continual assessment
.of educational needs," with the purpose of locating and offering assis-
tance to "those segments of our population who are relatively
dis;dvantaged."

The question of school leaving age was commented on by several
respondents. In the main, and with reference to secondary education
only, they asked that students be allowed to drép out legally at any time,

with the option of returning as serious students at the beginning of any

term.

-
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RESOURCE CENTRES

A significant number of people stressed the importance of
good school libraries or resource centres. It was generally agreed that
all schools should have resource centres, with trained library staff,
some on a part-time basis, in charge of them. Further, {t was stated
that adequate stocks of books, periodicals, and audio-visual materials
(such as filmstrips, film loops, sound recording§ and tapes, pictures,
photograbhic slides, maps, charts, overhead tran§parencies) should be
provided for all schools. 1t was argued by a ho;e and school group
that adequately stocked and properly staffeu resource centres "are
prerequisite to implei. -~tation of the individual-centred philosophy of
education which is recognized as necegsary and desirable today, and
which‘is the official philosophy for educaticn in Saskatoon,®

. Reference was made by several groups - school librarians

and home and school associations - to 3tandards for Library Service for

Canadian Schoolg as a guideline for future development. Specifically,

these groups emphasized the need in schools for professional teacher-
librarians; for large budgets ($5.00 per student for books and the
same for audio-;isual materials); for clerical qssistants in large
libraries; and for more space to accommodate students in the resource
centres.

School librarians drew attention to training requirements.
They stressed that "teachihg qualifications and experience are essential
to running an effective [ﬁedia centré] programme in a school situation.®
In éddition, hovaver, they recommended *"that local school *)ards

establish a policy whereby teacher-librarians would be required to take

at least three undergraduate classes in library sciernce as a condition




